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This Current Report on Form 8-K/A amends and supplements the Current Report on Form 8-K of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P., filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on June 2, 2006 (the “Form 8-K”), which reported under Item 2.01 the acquisition of the retail propane operations of Titan Energy
Partners LP and Titan Energy GP LLC, pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April 19, 2006. This amendment is filed to provide the financial
statements and the pro forma financial information required by Item 9.01, and unless set forth below, all previous Items of the Form 8-K are unchanged.

Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets

On June 1, 2006, we announced that we acquired the propane operations of Titan Energy Partners LP and its general partner, Titan Energy GP LLC
(together, “Titan”), consisting of 146 retail locations in high-growth areas in 33 states spanning the United States. The acquisition of Titan adds approximately
331,000 active customers and 1,250 full-time employees to our propane segment and expands our retail propane operations into six additional states and several
new operating territories, further reducing the impact adverse weather patterns and economic downturns in any one region may have on our overall operations.
The acquisition of Titan also adds the Coast, Synergy, Empire and Economy trade names to our propane business.

In its 2005 fiscal year, Titan sold more than 200 million gallons of propane to over 325,000 customers. Approximately 90% of Titan’s customers are
residential customers, accounting for approximately 64% of the total retail gallons sold by Titan. Titan purchases 100% of its propane supply from Enterprise
Products Partners L.P. pursuant to the terms of a five-year agreement that expires in 2010. Pursuant to the agreement, Enterprise provides Titan with procurement,
logistics, scheduling, monitoring, processing, consulting and risk management services related to the purchasing and distribution of propane, allowing Titan to
realize substantial back-office cost savings and the ability to procure propane at attractive prices. In addition, this arrangement has allowed Titan to reduce the
amount of working capital normally required to fund inventories on pipelines and in storage facilities. In the event that Enterprise’s performance criteria are not
met under the agreement, Titan has the ability to assume supply contracts with other suppliers. We believe that if supplies from Enterprise were interrupted, we
would be able to secure adequate propane supplies from other sources without a material disruption of our operations.

The purchase price in the merger was approximately $562 million, including the payoff of long-term debt (net of acquired cash), and is subject to working
capital adjustments. The payment of the purchase price was financed through borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Risk Factors

If any of these risks were to occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected.

We may be unable to successfully integrate Titan’s operations with our operations and to realize all of the anticipated benefits of the acquisition of Titan.
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Integration of Titan with our business and operations will be a complex and time consuming process. Failure to successfully integrate Titan’s operations
with our operations in a timely manner may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The difficulties of combining the businesses include, among other things:
 

 •  operating a significantly larger combined company and integrating additional operations to our existing operations;
 

 •  the necessity of coordinating geographically disparate organizations, systems and facilities;
 

 •  integrating personnel with diverse business backgrounds and organizational cultures; and
 

 •  consolidating corporate and administrative functions.

In addition, we may not realize all of the anticipated benefits from our acquisition of Titan due to a number of potential factors including the impact of
competition, fluctuations in markets, higher costs and difficulties in integrating operations.

We will also be exposed to risks that are commonly associated with transactions similar to this acquisition, such as unanticipated liabilities and costs, some
of which may be material, and diversion of management’s attention. As a result, the anticipated benefits of the acquisition may not be fully realized, if at all.

Our increased debt level may limit our future financial and operating flexibility.

As of May 31, 2006, we had approximately $2.1 billion of consolidated debt outstanding on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the acquisition of Titan,
including the incurrence of additional borrowings related to this acquisition, which indebtedness represented approximately 50% of our total book capitalization
as of that date on a pro forma basis. As a result of the acquisition of Titan and the related borrowings under our revolving credit facility, our financial leverage is
higher. Our level of indebtedness affects our operations in several ways, including, among other things:
 

 
•  a significant portion of our cash flow from operations will be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on outstanding debt and will not be

available for other purposes, including payment of distributions;
 

 
•  covenants contained in our existing debt arrangements require us to meet financial tests that may adversely affect our flexibility in planning for and

reacting to sudden changes in our business;
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 •  our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and general partnership purposes may be limited;
 

 •  we may be at a competitive disadvantage relative to similar companies that have less debt; and
 

 •  we may be more vulnerable to adverse economic and industry conditions as a result of our debt level.

We may not be able to fully execute our growth strategy if we encounter illiquid capital markets or increased competition for qualified assets.

Our strategy contemplates growth through the development and acquisition of a wide range of midstream, transportation, propane and other energy
infrastructure assets while maintaining a strong balance sheet. This strategy includes constructing and acquiring additional assets and businesses to enhance our
ability to compete effectively and diversify our asset portfolio, thereby providing more stable cash flow. We regularly consider and enter into discussions
regarding, and are currently contemplating, the acquisition of additional assets and businesses, stand alone development projects or other transactions that we
believe will present opportunities to realize synergies and increase our market position.

We may require substantial new capital to finance the future development and acquisition of assets and businesses. Limitations on our access to capital will
impair our ability to execute this strategy. Expensive capital will limit our ability to develop or acquire accretive assets. We may not be able to raise the necessary
funds on satisfactory terms, if at all.

Consistent with our acquisition strategy, we are continuously engaged in discussions with potential sellers regarding the possible acquisition of additional
assets or businesses. Such acquisition efforts may involve our participation in processes that involve a number of potential buyers, commonly referred to as
“auction” processes, as well as situations where we believe we are the only party or one of a very limited number of potential buyers in negotiations with the
potential seller. We can give you no assurance that our current or future acquisition efforts will be successful or that any such acquisition will be completed on
terms considered favorable to us.

If we do not make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, any future growth will be limited.

Our ability to grow and to increase distributions to unitholders is dependent principally on our ability to make acquisitions that are accretive to our
distributable cash flow per unit. Our acquisition strategy is based, in part, on our expectation of ongoing divestitures of pipeline assets by large industry
participants. A material decrease in such divestitures would limit our opportunities for future acquisitions and could adversely affect our operations and cash
flows available for distribution to our unitholders.

In addition, we may be unable to make such accretive acquisitions for any of the following reasons, among others:
 

 •  because we are unable to locate attractive acquisition candidates or negotiate acceptable purchase contracts with them;
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 •  because we are unable to raise financing for such acquisitions on economically acceptable terms; or
 

 
•  because we are outbid by competitors, some of which may be substantially larger than us or have greater financial resources and lower costs of capital

than we do.

Furthermore, even if we consummate acquisitions that we believe will be accretive, they may in fact result in no increase or even a decrease in distributable
cash flow per unit. Any acquisition involves potential risks, including risks that we may:
 

 •  fail to realize anticipated benefits, such as new customer relationships, cost-savings or cash flow enhancements;
 

 •  decrease our liquidity by using a significant portion of our available cash or borrowing capacity to finance acquisitions;
 

 •  significantly increase our interest expense or financial leverage if we incur additional debt to finance acquisitions;
 

 •  encounter difficulties operating in new geographic areas or new lines of business;
 

 
•  incur or assume unanticipated liabilities, losses or costs associated with the business or assets acquired for which we are not indemnified or for which

the indemnity is inadequate;
 

 •  be unable to hire, train or retrain qualified personnel to manage and operate our growing business and assets;
 

 •  less effectively manage our historical assets, due to the diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;
 

 •  incur other significant charges, such as impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets, asset devaluation or restructuring charges.

If we consummate future acquisitions, our capitalization and results of operations may change significantly. As we determine the application of our funds
and other resources, you will not have an opportunity to evaluate the economics, financial and other relevant information that we will consider.

On June 1, 2006, we consummated the acquisition of Titan for a purchase price of approximately $562 million (net of acquired cash), including the payoff
of long-term debt (net of acquired cash), and subject to working capital adjustments. The payment of the purchase price initially was financed through borrowings
under our revolving credit facility. We may be exposed to some or all of the risks described above in connection with the acquisition of Titan.
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We encounter competition from other propane companies.

Our propane business competes with a number of large and regional propane companies, and several thousand small independent propane companies.
Because of the relatively low barriers to entry into the retail propane market, there is potential for small independent propane retailers, as well as other companies
that may not currently be engaged in retail propane distribution, to compete with our retail outlets. As a result, we are always subject to the risk of additional
competition in the future. Generally, warmer-than-normal weather further intensifies competition. Most of our propane retail branch locations compete with
several other marketers or distributors in their service areas. The principal factors influencing competition with other retail propane marketers are:
 

 •  price,
 

 •  reliability and quality of service,
 

 •  responsiveness to customer needs,
 

 •  safety concerns,
 

 •  long-standing customer relationships,
 

 •  the inconvenience of switching tanks and suppliers, and
 

 •  the lack of growth in the industry.

Since weather conditions may adversely affect demand for propane, our financial condition is vulnerable to warm winters.

Weather conditions have a significant impact on the demand for propane for heating purposes because the majority of our customers rely heavily on
propane as a heating fuel. Typically, we sell approximately two-thirds of our retail propane volume during the peak-heating season of October through March.
Our results of operations can be adversely affected by warmer winter weather which results in lower sales volumes. In addition, to the extent that warm weather
or other factors adversely affect our operating and financial results, our access to capital and our acquisition activities may be limited. Variations in weather in one
or more of the regions where we operate can significantly affect the total volume of propane that we sell and the profits realized on these sales. Agricultural
demand for propane may also be affected by the weather, including periods of unseasonably cold or hot periods or dry weather conditions which may impact
agricultural operations.
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Sudden and sharp propane price increases that cannot be passed on to customers may adversely affect our profit margins.

The propane industry is a “margin-based” business in which gross profits depend on the excess of sales prices over supply costs. As a result, our
profitability is sensitive to changes in energy prices, and in particular, changes in wholesale prices of propane. When there are sudden and sharp increases in the
wholesale cost of propane, we may not be able to pass on these increases to our customers through retail or wholesale prices. Propane is a commodity and the
price we pay for it can fluctuate significantly in response to changes in supply or other market conditions over which we have no control. In addition, the timing
of cost pass-throughs can significantly affect margins. Sudden and extended wholesale price increases could reduce our gross profits and could, if continued over
an extended period of time, reduce demand by encouraging our retail customers to conserve their propane usage or convert to alternative energy sources.

Our results of operations could be negatively impacted by price and inventory risk related to our propane business and management of these risks.

We generally attempt to minimize our cost and inventory risk related to our propane business by purchasing propane on a short-term basis under supply
contracts that typically have a one-year term and at a cost that fluctuates based on the prevailing market prices at major delivery points. In order to help ensure
adequate supply sources are available during periods of high demand, we may purchase large volumes of propane during periods of low demand or low price,
which generally occur during the summer months, for storage in our facilities, at major storage facilities or for future delivery. This strategy may not be effective
in limiting our cost and inventory risks if, for example, market, weather or other conditions prevent or limit the delivery of physical product during periods of
peak demand. If the market price falls below the cost at which we made such purchases, it could adversely affect our profits.

Some of our propane sales are pursuant to commitments at fixed prices. To mitigate the price risk related to our anticipated sales volumes under the
commitments, we may purchase and store physical product and/or enter into fixed price over-the-counter energy commodity forward contracts and options.
Generally, over-the-counter energy commodity forward contracts have terms of less than one year. We enter into such contracts and exercise such options at
volume levels that we believe are necessary to manage these commitments. The risk management of our inventory and contracts for the future purchase of
propane could impair our profitability if the customers do not fulfill their obligations.

We also engage in other trading activities, and may enter into other types of over-the-counter energy commodity forward contracts and options. These
trading activities are based on our management’s estimates of future events and prices and are intended to generate a profit. However, if those estimates are
incorrect or other market events outside of our control occur, such activities could generate a loss in future periods and potentially impair our profitability.
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We are dependent on our principal propane suppliers, which increases the risk of an interruption in supply.

During fiscal 2005, we purchased approximately 23.7% of our propane from Enterprise Products Operating L.P., approximately 20.6% of our propane from
Dynegy Liquids Marketing and Trade and approximately 23.0% of our propane from MP Energy, the Canadian partnership in which we own a 60% interest. In
addition, Titan purchases 100% of its propane from Enterprise pursuant to an agreement that expires in 2010. If supplies from these sources were interrupted, the
cost of procuring replacement supplies and transporting those supplies from alternative locations might be materially higher and, at least on a short-term basis,
margins could be adversely affected. Supply from Canada is subject to the additional risk of disruption associated with foreign trade such as trade restrictions,
shipping delays and political, regulatory and economic instability.

Historically, a substantial portion of the propane we purchase has originated from one of the industry’s major markets located in Mont Belvieu, Texas and
has been shipped to us through major common carrier pipelines. Any significant interruption in the service at Mont Belvieu or other major market points, or on
the common carrier pipelines we use would adversely affect our ability to obtain propane.

Competition from alternative energy sources may cause us to lose propane customers, thereby reducing our revenues.

Competition in our propane business from alternative energy sources has been increasing as a result of reduced regulation of many utilities. Propane is
generally not competitive with natural gas in areas where natural gas pipelines already exist because natural gas is a less expensive source of energy than propane.
The gradual expansion of natural gas distribution systems and the availability of natural gas in many areas that previously depended upon propane could cause us
to lose customers, thereby reducing our revenues. Fuel oil also competes with propane and is generally less expensive than propane. In addition, the successful
development and increasing usage of alternative energy sources could adversely affect our operations.

Energy efficiency and technological advances may affect the demand for propane and adversely affect our operating results.

The national trend toward increased conservation and technological advances, including installation of improved insulation and the development of more
efficient furnaces and other heating devices, has decreased the demand for propane by retail customers. Stricter conservation measures in the future or
technological advances in heating, conservation, energy generation or other devices could adversely affect our operations.
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Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

(a) Financial statements of businesses acquired.

The consolidated balance sheet of Titan Energy Partners LP as of June 30, 2005 and the related audited consolidated statements of operations, cash flows
and changes in partners’ capital for the period from December 20, 2004 through June 30, 2005 (successor company) and for the period from July 1, 2004 through
December 19, 2004 (predecessor company), together with the audit report thereon, and the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006
and the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations, cash flows, and changes in partners’ capital for the nine months ended March 31, 2006
(successor company) and the period of December 20, 2004 through March 31, 2005 (successor company) and the period of July 1, 2004 through December 19,
2004 (predecessor company) are filed as Exhibit 99.2 to this Current Report.

(b) Pro forma financial information.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of May 31, 2006, and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations for the year
ended August 31, 2005 and the nine months ended May 31, 2006 of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and the related notes are filed as Exhibit 99.3 to this Current
Report.

(c) Exhibits. The following exhibits are being furnished herewith:

Exhibit 23.1 - Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Exhibit 99.1 - Press Release of the Registrant dated June 1, 2006 (previously filed as a part of this Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2006).

Exhibit 99.2 - Consolidated balance sheet of Titan Energy Partners LP as of June 30, 2005 and the related audited consolidated statements of operations,
cash flows and changes in partners’ capital for the period from December 20, 2004 through June 30, 2005 (successor company) and for the period from
July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004 (predecessor company), together with the audit report thereon, and the unaudited condensed consolidated balance
sheet as of March 31, 2006 and the consolidated condensed statements of operations, cash flows, and changes in partners’ capital for the nine months ended
March 31, 2006 (successor company) and the period of December 20, 2004 through March 31, 2005 (successor company) and the period of July 1, 2004
through December 19, 2004 (predecessor company).

Exhibit 99.3 - The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of May 31, 2006, and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of operations
for the year ended August 31, 2005 and the nine months ended May 31, 2006 of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and the related notes.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.
 

 Energy Transfer Partners, L.P.

 By: Energy Transfer Partners GP, L.P., General Partner
 By: Energy Transfer Partners, L.L.C., General Partner

Date: July 21, 2006  By: /s/ Ray C. Davis
  Ray C. Davis
  Co-Chief Executive Officer

 By: /s/ Kelcy L Warren
  Kelcy L. Warren
  Co-Chief Executive Officer

 
Page 10



INDEX TO EXHIBITS
 
Exhibit No.  Description
Exhibit 23.1  Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Exhibit 99.1  Press Release of the Registrant dated June 1, 2006 (previously filed as a part of this Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2006).

Exhibit 99.2

 

Consolidated balance sheet of Titan Energy Partners LP as of June 30, 2005 and the related audited consolidated statements of operations, cash
flows and changes in partners’ capital for the period from December 20, 2004 through June 30, 2005 (successor company) and for the period
from July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004 (predecessor company), together with the audit report thereon, and the unaudited condensed
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 and the consolidated condensed statements of operations, cash flows, and changes in partners’
capital for the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (successor company) and the period of December 20, 2004 through March 31, 2005
(successor company) and the period of July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004 (predecessor company).

Exhibit 99.3

 

The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of May 31, 2006, and the unaudited pro forma unaudited pro forma consolidated
statements of operations for the year ended August 31, 2005 and the nine months ended May 31, 2006 of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. and the
related notes.
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-133174) of Energy Transfer
Partners, L.P. of our reports dated January 23, 2006 relating to the financial statements of Titan Energy Partner LP, which appears in the Current Report on Form
8-K/A of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. dated July 20, 2006.

Chicago, Illinois
July 20, 2006
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Titan Energy GP LLC,
General Partner of Titan Energy Partners LP:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2005 (Successor Company) and the consolidated statements of operations, partners’
capital and cash flows for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (Successor Company) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Titan Energy Partners LP and its subsidiary (the “Partnership”) at June 30, 2005 (Successor Company) and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (Successor Company) in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York confirmed the
Partnership’s Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) on November 8, 2004. Confirmation of the Plan resulted in the discharge or settlement of all claims against the
Partnership that arose before June 3, 2004 and terminated all rights and interests of equity security holders of the Predecessor Company as provided in the Plan.
The Plan was substantially consummated on December 20, 2004 and the Partnership emerged from bankruptcy. In connection with its emergence from
bankruptcy, the Partnership adopted fresh start accounting.

January 23, 2006
Chicago, Illinois
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Titan Energy GP LLC,
General Partner of Titan Energy Partners LP:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, partners’ capital and cash flows for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004
(Predecessor Company) present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Titan Energy Partners LP and its subsidiary (the
‘Partnership’) for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004 (Predecessor Company) in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York confirmed the
Partnership’s Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) on November 8, 2004. Confirmation of the Plan resulted in the discharge or settlement of all claims against the
Partnership that arose before June 3, 2004 and terminated all rights and interests of equity security holders of the Predecessor Company as provided in the Plan.
The Plan was substantially consummated on December 20, 2004 and the Partnership emerged from bankruptcy. In connection with its emergence from
bankruptcy, the Partnership adopted fresh start accounting.

January 23, 2006
Chicago, Illinois
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

 

   
June 30,

2005   
March 31,

2006
      (Unaudited)

ASSETS     
CURRENT ASSETS:     

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 36,092  $ 40,719
Accounts receivable - trade, net of allowance of $1,593 and $1,598, respectively    16,175   35,261
Inventories    10,595   12,669
Prepaid expenses    4,789   2,671
Other current assets    18,820   11,555

        

Total current assets    86,471   102,875
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net    187,506   173,328
GOODWILL    3,838   3,838
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net    33,385   30,732
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE    4,438   3,959
OTHER ASSETS    2,148   1,791

        

Total assets   $317,786  $ 316,523
        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

 

   
June 30,

2005   
March 31,

2006
      (Unaudited)

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL     
CURRENT LIABILITIES:     

Trade accounts payable   $ 20,850  $ 21,924
Accrued liabilities    25,706   27,358
Restructuring accruals    27   —  
Unsecured claims pool    898   —  
Accrued interest expense    284   349
Current portion of long-term debt    2,875   2,424

        

Total current liabilities    50,640   52,055

LONG-TERM DEBT    124,691   122,935

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES     
        

Total liabilities    175,331   174,990
        

PARTNERS’ CAPITAL:     
General Partner    5,305   5,245
Limited Partners     

Common Unitholders (7,131 units issued and outstanding at June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006)    76,115   74,633
Subordinated Unitholders (7,100 units issued and outstanding at June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006)    61,035   59,559
Deferred units granted    —     2,096

        

Total partners’ capital    142,455   141,533
        

Total liabilities and partners’ capital   $317,786  $ 316,523
        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands)

 

   Successor       Predecessor  

   

December 20, 2004
to

June 30, 2005       

July 1, 2004
to

December 19, 2004 
REVENUES:       

Propane   $ 202,559     $ 134,152 
Other    19,648      17,522 

    
 

      
 

Total revenues    222,207      151,674 
    

 
      

 

COSTS AND EXPENSES:       
Cost of sales    126,179      88,660 
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses    62,489      52,819 
Depreciation and amortization    12,833      9,675 
Gain on disposal or abandonment of assets    (45)     (8)
Restructuring charges    753      —   

    
 

      
 

Total costs and expenses    202,209      151,146 
    

 
      

 

OPERATING INCOME    19,998      528 
 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):       
Interest expense    (5,424)     (169)
Fresh start adjustments    —        (10,835)
Reorganization expenses    (3,959)     (20,898)
Gain on cancellation of debt    —        385,951 
Other income (expense), net    1,440      (360)

    
 

      
 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE    12,055      354,217 
 

Provision for income taxes    —        8 
    

 
      

 

NET INCOME   $ 12,055     $ 354,209 
    

 

      

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands)

 

   Successor   Successor       Predecessor  

   

Nine Months
Ended

March 31, 2006
(unaudited)   

December 20, 2004
to

March 31, 2005
(unaudited)       

July 1, 2004
to

December 19, 2004 
REVENUES:        

Propane   $ 304,005  $ 150,705     $ 134,152 
Other    30,952   12,017      17,522 

    
 

   
 

      
 

Total revenues    334,957   162,722      151,674 
    

 
   

 
      

 

COSTS AND EXPENSES:        
Cost of sales    197,203   92,436      88,660 
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses    89,385   33,760      52,819 
Depreciation and amortization    17,637   6,640      9,675 
(Gain) loss on disposal or abandonment of assets    2   (51)     (8)
Restructuring charges    2,201   140      —   

    
 

   
 

      
 

Total costs and expenses    306,428   132,925      151,146 
    

 
   

 
      

 

OPERATING INCOME    28,529   29,797      528 
 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):        
Interest expense    (8,778)  (2,673)     (169)
Fresh start adjustments    —     —        (10,835)
Reorganization expenses    (1,817)  (2,418)     (20,898)
Gain on cancellation of debt    —     —        385,951 
Other income (expense), net    829   828      (360)

    
 

   
 

      
 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE    18,763   25,534      354,217 
 

Provision for income taxes    —     —        8 
    

 
   

 
      

 

NET INCOME   $ 18,763  $ 25,534     $ 354,209 
    

 

   

 

      

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
(in thousands)

 
   Units      Limited Partners      Total

Partners’
Capital
(Deficit)     Common   Subordinated  

General
Partner   Common   Subordinated  

Deferred
Units Granted  

PREDECESSOR COMPANY          

Balance, June 30, 2004   17,333  6,598  $(369,771) $ —    $ —    $ —    $(369,771)
Cash contributed   —    —     15,562   —     —     —     15,562 
Net loss before fresh start adjustments   —    —     (20,907)  —     —     —     (20,907)
Gain from discharge of debt   —    —     385,951   —     —     —     385,951 
Income effect of fresh start adjustments   —    —     (10,835)  —     —     —     (10,835)
Cancellation of securities   (17,333) (6,598)  —     —     —     —     —   

   
 

  
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

       
 

Balance, December 19, 2004   —    —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —   
   

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

       

 

                            
SUCCESSOR COMPANY          

Exchange of debt for equity   7,100  7,100  $ —    $ 73,334  $ 58,667  $ —    $ 132,001 
Distribution of Successor Company units   —    —     5,200   —     —     —     5,200 

   
 

  
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

       
 

Balance, Fresh Start at December 20, 2004   7,100  7,100   5,200   73,334   58,667   —     137,201 
Net income   —    —     241   5,896   5,918   —     12,055 
Issuance of units for cash   31  —     9   450   —     —     459 
Cash distributions   —    —     (145)  (3,565)  (3,550)  —     (7,260)

   
 

  
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

       
 

Balance, June 30, 2005   7,131  7,100  $ 5,305  $ 76,115  $ 61,035  $ —    $ 142,455 
   

 
  

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
       

 

Unaudited          

Deferred units granted   —    —     —     —     —     2,096   2,096 
Distributions   —    —     (435)  (10,696)  (10,650)  —     (21,781)
Net income   —    —     375   9,214   9,174   —     18,763 

   
 

  
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

       
 

Balance, March 31, 2006   7,131  7,100  $ 5,245  $ 74,633  $ 59,559  $ 2,096  $ 141,533 
   

 

  

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

       

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS L.P. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

 

   Successor       Predecessor  

   

December 20, 2004
to

June 30, 2005       

July 1, 2004
to

December 19, 2004 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:       

Net income   $ 12,055     $ 354,209 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:       
Gain on discharge of debt    —        (385,951)
Net fresh start adjustments    —        10,835 
Depreciation and amortization    13,071      9,675 
(Gain) loss on disposal or abandonment of assets    (45)     (8)
Provision for appliance inventory obsolescence    7      19 
Provision for losses on uncollectible accounts    786      277 
(Gain) loss on forward supply contracts    (687)     646 
Changes in assets and liabilities:       

Accounts receivable    11,078      (13,403)
Inventories    6,327      (6,569)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    10,174      (2,197)
Other assets    (409)     6,747 
Trade accounts payable    (31,941)     22,588 
Accrued and other current liabilities    (1,495)     3,982 
Accrued interest expense    145      679 
Restructuring accrual    27      —   
Accrued income taxes    (44)     8 

    
 

      
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    19,049      1,537 
 

Cash used in reorganizational activities    (11,392)     (3,618)
    

 
      

 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and reorganizational activities    7,657      (2,081)
    

 
      

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       
Purchases of property, plant and equipment    (6,445)     (10,750)
Proceeds from the disposal of assets    1,606      467 
Acquisition of intangible assets    (17)     (50)

    
 

      
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (4,856)     (10,333)
    

 
      

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       
Payments on seller notes, non-competes, and capital leases    (1,181)     (1,613)
Payments on term loan    (625)     —   
General Partner contribution    —        5,200 
Issuance of Common Units    459      —   
Cash distributions    (7,260)     —   
Contributed capital to general partners’ deficit    —        15,562 

    
 

      
 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (8,607)     19,149 
    

 
      

 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    (5,806)     6,735 
 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    41,898      35,163 
    

 
      

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 36,092     $ 41,898 
    

 

      

 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:       
Cash paid for interest   $ 5,279     $ 249 
Cash paid for income taxes    —        44 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS L.P. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

 

   Successor   Successor       Predecessor  

   
Nine Months

Ended
March 31, 2006

(Unaudited)  

 
December 20, 2004

to
March 31, 2005

(Unaudited)  

 

  
  July 1, 2004

to
December 19, 2004        

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:        
Net income   $ 18,763  $ 25,534     $ 354,209 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:        
Gain on discharge of debt    —     —        (385,951)
Net fresh start adjustments    —     —        10,835 
Depreciation and amortization    17,914   6,640      9,675 
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets    360   (137)     —   
(Gain) loss on disposal or abandonment of assets    —     —        (8)
Provision for appliance inventory obsolescence    77   7      19 
Provision for losses on uncollectible accounts    733   514      277 
(Gain) loss on forward supply contracts    —     (646)     646 
Changes in assets and liabilities:        

Accounts receivable    (19,819)  (5,875)     (13,403)
Inventories    (2,152)  2,817      (6,569)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    9,383   1,831      (2,197)
Other assets    79   (1,273)     6,747 
Trade accounts payable    1,074   (28,312)     22,588 
Accrued and other current liabilities    3,818   (2,453)     3,982 
Accrued interest expense    65   186      679 
Accrued income taxes    —     —        8 

    
 

   
 

      
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    30,295   (1,167)     1,537 
 

Cash used in reorganizational activities    (925)  (6,206)     (3,618)
    

 
   

 
      

 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and
reorganizational activities    29,370   (7,373)     (2,081)

    
 

   
 

      
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:        
Purchases of property, plant and equipment    (4,552)  (2,713)     (10,750)
Proceeds from the disposal of assets    3,815   824      467 
Acquisition of intangible assets    (125)  —        (50)

    
 

   
 

      
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (862)  (1,889)     (10,333)
    

 
   

 
      

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:        
Payments on seller notes, non-competes, and capital leases    —     —        (1,613)
Principal payments on long-term debt    (2,100)  (939)     —   
General Partner contribution    —     —        5,200 
Issuance of Common Units    —     450      —   
Cash distributions    (21,781)  —        —   
Contributed capital to general partners’ deficit    —     —        15,562 

    
 

   
 

      
 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (23,881)  (489)     19,149 
    

 
   

 
      

 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    4,627   (9,751)     6,735 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period    36,092   41,898      35,163 

    
 

   
 

      
 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period   $ 40,719  $ 32,147     $ 41,898 
    

 

   

 

      

 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:        
Cash paid for interest   $ 8,713  $ 2,452     $ 249 
Cash paid for income taxes    —     —        44 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TITAN ENERGY PARTNERS LP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per unit data)

NOTE 1 – Reorganization and Emergence from Chapter 11

Titan Energy Partners LP (“Titan Partners”) was formed on November 1, 2004. Its wholly-owned subsidiary, Titan Propane LLC (the “Operating
Company”), was formed on October 26, 2004. The above entities succeeded Cornerstone Propane Partners, L.P. (“Cornerstone Partners” or the
“Predecessor Company”, as described below) upon the consummation of the reorganization plan on December 20, 2004 following a bankruptcy petition
filed by the Predecessor Company and subsidiaries. The accompanying Successor Company (as described below) financial statements for the nine months
ended March 31, 2006 and the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 include the accounts of Titan Partners and the Operating Company
(collectively referred to herein as the “Partnership” or the “Successor Company”). The Operating Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary, Titan Propane
Services Inc., which became active during the period ended March 31, 2006.

Cornerstone Partners was formed on October 7, 1996, as a Delaware limited partnership. Cornerstone Partners and its subsidiary, Cornerstone Propane,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Operating Partnership”) were formed to acquire, own and operate substantially all of the propane businesses and
assets of SYN Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Synergy”), Empire Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Empire”) and CGI Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(“Coast”). On December 20, 2004, the Operating Partnership merged with and into the Operating Company, whereby the separate existence of the
Operating Partnership ceased and the Operating Company became the surviving company. The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the
period ended December 19, 2004 include the accounts of Cornerstone Partners, the Operating Partnership and its corporate subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Predecessor Company”).

The Successor Company continued the business of the Predecessor Company upon emergence from bankruptcy. The core business consists principally of
(a) the retail marketing and distribution of propane for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural and other retail uses; (b) the repair and maintenance
of propane heating systems and appliances; and (c) the sale of propane-related supplies, appliances and other equipment. On June 3, 2004, Cornerstone
Partners and its subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. On November 8, 2004, the Bankruptcy
Court confirmed the Predecessor Company’s Plan of Reorganization and on December 20, 2004, the Predecessor Company’s Plan of Reorganization was
consummated (Note 2).

Reorganization

On June 3, 2004 (the “Filing Date”), the Predecessor Company and its subsidiaries (the “Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (“Bankruptcy Code” or “Chapter 11”) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of
New York (the “Bankruptcy Court”) in order to facilitate the restructuring of the Debtors’ debt, trade liabilities and other obligations.

Under the Bankruptcy Code, certain claims against the Debtors in existence prior to the filing of the petition for relief under Federal bankruptcy laws were
stayed while the Debtors continued business operations as debtors-in-possession. These claims are considered “liabilities subject to compromise”. The
primary categories of liabilities subject to compromise as of June 30, 2004 were the following:

 

   
Predecessor
Company

Current portion of long-term debt   $ 465,500
Trade accounts payable    27,349
Accrued liabilities and income taxes    20,499
Accrued interest    164,661
Due to former parent    23,291
Long-term debt    3,507

    

Total   $ 704,807
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The Debtors filed a Disclosure Statement (the “Disclosure Statement”) for the Debtors’ Joint Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) pursuant to Chapter 11.
On August 10, 2004, an order was signed by the Bankruptcy Court approving the Disclosure Statement. The Debtors filed a modified version of the
Disclosure Statement on October 18, 2004. A hearing on confirmation of the Plan took place on November 4, 2004 and an order confirming the Plan was
entered by the Bankruptcy Court on November 8, 2004. On December 20, 2004, the Successor Company received final financing commitments.

The effective date of the Plan occurred on December 20, 2004. A summary of the significant provisions of the Plan is set forth below:
 

 •  The Operating Partnership merged with and into the Operating Company;
 

 •  The only member of the Operating Company is Titan Partners;
 

 
•  The general partner of Titan Partners is Titan Energy GP LLC, a newly-formed Delaware Limited Liability Company (the “General Partner”). It

was originally named Cornerstone Propane GP LLC and changed its name to Titan Energy GP LLC in March 2005;
 

 •  All partnership interests of Cornerstone Partners and the Operating Partnership were cancelled;
 

 •  All debt securities of the Debtors were settled and cancelled (see below);
 

 •  Unexpired leases and executory contracts of the Debtors were assumed or rejected;
 

 
•  The Operating Company issued $125.0 million principal amount of new notes due 2009 to settle the $365.0 million of Senior Secured Notes and

the amounts outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement (both defined in Note 7);
 

 •  The Operating Company entered into a $50.0 million revolving credit facility to be used for general working capital purposes;
 

 
•  7.1 million common units and 7.1 million subordinated units of Titan Partners were issued to settle claims of holders of the Senior Secured

Notes (see below);
 

 
•  Total payments of approximately $15.3 million in cash has been used to settle $45.0 million of Senior Notes and certain unsecured claims

against the Debtors pursuant to the Plan (see below).

The following briefly summarizes the classification and treatment of claims and equity interests under the Plan.

Claims estimated to be fully recoverable:
 

 •  Administrative expenses and other priority claims, secured tax claims and other secured claims were paid in cash.
 

 
•  Obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business during the pendency of the Chapter 11 case or approved by the Bankruptcy Court and

pre-existing obligations under executory contracts assumed by the Operating Company have been or will be paid in full when due.

Claims having an estimated recovery of less than 100%:
 

 •  Convenience claims, which were defined as claims for $3,000 or less per claim, were settled by cash payments.
 

 
•  The Senior Secured Notes (Note 7) were settled with (a) $110.0 million principal amount of new notes and (b) 100% of the new Common and

Subordinated Units as discussed above (subject to dilution as part of the Equity Incentive Plan as described in Note 12).
 

 
•  Northwestern Corporation (“Northwestern”), the holder of the Operating Partnership’s Senior Secured Credit Agreement, received $15.0 million

principal amount of a new note in full satisfaction of the Senior Secured Credit Agreements (Note 7) and any other Northwestern Claims.
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•  The Senior Notes (Note 7), unsecured claims and pending litigation, excluding the Securities Litigation (as described in Note 11), of

Cornerstone Partners were settled by cash payments of their pro-rata share of $12.3 million.
 

 
•  Other unsecured claims, including pending litigation, of the Operating Partnership and its subsidiaries are to be settled by cash payments of their

pro-rata share of $3.0 million.

Claims receiving no compensation:
 

 •  The partnership interests of Cornerstone Partners and the Operating Partnership.
 

 •  The claims related to the Predecessor Company Securities Litigation (Note 11).
 

 •  The Subordinated Loans (Note 7).

For federal (and, where appropriate, state) income tax purposes, the bankruptcy reorganization and the dissolution terminated the taxable year of the
Predecessor Company. Therefore, the operations of the Predecessor Company and its subsidiaries were reflected on a final tax return for the period
January 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004.

Since the bankruptcy reorganization resulted in the elimination of some portion of the Debtors’ debt for less than full value, the Predecessor Company
realized cancellation of debt income (“CODI”). The CODI flowed through to unitholders of the Predecessor Company to be recognized on their respective
income tax returns.

NOTE 2 – Fresh Start Accounting

Fresh Start basis of presentation

In accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, (“SOP 90-7”), the Successor Company adopted fresh
start accounting because the owners of the Predecessor Company immediately prior to filing and confirmation of the Plan received less than 50 percent of
the ownership of the emerging entity and its reorganization value immediately before confirmation of the Plan was less than the total of its allowed claims
and post-petition liabilities. For financial reporting purposes, the effective date of the Plan is considered to be December 20, 2004.

In accordance with the principles of fresh start accounting, the Successor Company adjusted its assets and liabilities to their estimated fair values as of
December 20, 2004 with the excess of the Successor Company’s reorganization value over the fair value of its tangible and identifiable intangible assets
reported as goodwill. After the debt restructuring, the net effect of all fresh start accounting adjustments resulted in a write-down of assets of $10.8 million.

In accordance with SOP 90-7, management determined the reorganization value of the Successor Company. The Predecessor Company engaged a third
party financial advisor to assist in determining the overall enterprise value of the reorganized Successor Company. For the purposes of its application, the
enterprise value can be defined as the total value of the Successor Company as a going concern. The third party employed multiple valuation methods and
determined that the enterprise value fell within a range of $325.0 million to $395.0 million. The valuation was based on a number of estimates and
assumptions and multiple valuation methods, including a discounted cash flow analysis using projected financial information, selected publicly traded
company market valuations for similar companies, and other applicable ratios and valuation techniques believed by the Successor Company to be
representative of the Successor Company’s business and industry. The estimates and assumptions are inherently subject to significant uncertainties.

The enterprise value was used to estimate the Successor Company’s reorganization value. Reorganization value, as defined by SOP 90-7, is “… the fair
value of the entity before considering liabilities and approximates the amount a willing buyer would pay for the assets of the entity immediately after the
restructuring.” The reorganization value at December 20, 2004 was determined to be $359.9 million which is the mid-point of the enterprise valuation
range.

Another independent valuation firm was engaged to assist in determining the fair value of certain of the Successor Company’s property and equipment and
identifiable intangible assets. Using these valuations, the Successor Company allocated the reorganization value to its assets and liabilities. The excess of
reorganization value over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities has been recorded as goodwill in the amount of $3.8
million.
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Due to the application of fresh start accounting as a result of the consummation of the Plan, the consolidated financial statements of the Partnership issued
subsequent to the Plan implementation are not comparable with the consolidated financial statements issued by the Predecessor Company.

As part of the provisions of SOP 90-7, on December 20, 2004 the Successor Company adopted all accounting pronouncements and related interpretations
that were scheduled to become effective within the subsequent twelve month period (Note 3).

The following table shows the effects of the debt restructuring and the application of fresh start accounting on the Predecessor Company’s pre-confirmation
condensed consolidated balance sheet:

 

   

Predecessor
Company

December 19,
2004   

Debt
Restructuring    Adjustments    

Successor
Company

December 20,
2004

Assets           
Current assets           

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 40,316  $ (3,618) b)   $ 5,200 g)   $ 41,898
Trade receivables, net    28,104   —      —      28,104
Inventories    16,932   —      —      16,932
Prepaid expenses    5,790   —      —      5,790
Other current assets    28,100   —      —      28,100

                  

Total current assets    119,242   (3,618)    5,200    120,824

Property, plant, and equipment, net    188,105   —      5,045 c)    193,150
Goodwill    54,000   —      (50,162) d)    3,838
Other intangible assets, net    6,519   —      29,002 e)    35,521
Other assets    1,253   —      5,280 f)    6,533

                  

Total assets   $ 369,119  $ (3,618)   $ (5,635)   $ 359,866
                  

Liabilities and Partners’ Equity (Deficit)           
Current Liabilities           

Current portion of long-term debt   $ 2,255  $ 1,250 a)   $ —     $ 3,505
Trade accounts payable    52,775   —      —      52,775
Accrued liabilities    28,089   —         28,089
Reorganization accruals    —     —      —      —  
Unsecured claims pool    —     12,290 b)    —      12,290
Accrued interest    139   —      —      139

                  

Total current liabilities    83,258   13,540    —      96,798
Long-term debt    2,117   123,750 a)    —      125,867

Liabilities subject to compromise    658,860   (658,860) a),b)   —      —  
                  

Total liabilities    744,235   (521,570)    —      222,665
                  

Partners’ Equity (Deficit)           
General partners

  

 (375,116)

  

 385,951

 

a),b)

  

 (5,635)

 

c),d),
e),f),
g)   

 5,200

Limited partners           
Common unitholders    —     73,334 a)    —      73,334
Subordinated unitholders    —     58,667 a)    —      58,667

                  

Total partners’ equity (deficit)    (375,116)   517,952    (5,635)    137,201
                  

Total liabilities and partners’ equity (deficit)   $ 369,119  $ (3,618)   $ (5,635)   $ 359,866
                  

a) Exchange of pre-petition secured debt and accrued interest for $125.0 million Senior Secured Notes and limited partner units of Successor Company.
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b) Settlement of secured and unsecured debt (settlement amounts included in bankruptcy claims liabilities).
c) Property, plant and equipment was adjusted to reflect the estimated fair value of the assets.
d) Predecessor Company’s historical goodwill was eliminated. Excess of reorganization value over the fair value of Successor Company’s tangible assets and

specifically identified intangible assets was recorded as goodwill.
e) Predecessor Company’s historical book value of specifically identifiable intangible assets was eliminated. Successor Company’s specifically identifiable

intangible assets (customer relationships, trade-names, software) were recorded.
f) Successor Company’s assets held for sale were recorded.
g) Record contribution of $5.2 million by the General Partner upon emergence as required by the Plan.

The gain on the discharge of the Predecessor Company’s liabilities is as follows:
 

Total liabilities subject to compromise at December 20, 2004   $ 658,860 
Term Loan B issued    (125,000)
Unsecured claims pool    (15,908)
Estimated value of equity issued to holders of Senior Secured Notes    (132,001)

    
 

Total   $ 385,951 
    

 

NOTE 3 – Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations

The Partnership is a marketer of propane and refined fuels in the United States serving approximately 331,000 residential, commercial, industrial and
agricultural customers from approximately 145 customer service centers in 33 states. After emergence from bankruptcy, a significant cleanup of the
Partnership’s customer records occurred to purge inactive accounts. The Partnership’s operations are located in the east, south, central and west coast
regions of the United States.

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements for the Successor Company include the accounts of Titan Partners and the Operating Company. Financial statement
information related to the Predecessor Company includes the accounts of Cornerstone Partners and the Operating Partnership and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

The accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations and consolidated statements of cash flows reflect the statements of Predecessor
Company for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004 and Successor Company for the period from December 20, 2004 through March 31, 2005
(unaudited), and the nine month period ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited) for Successor Company.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (all of which are normal and recurring) have been made that are necessary to fairly state the consolidated
financial position of Titan Energy Partners L.P and subsidiary for Successor Company as of June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), and the results
of operations for Successor Company for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 and Predecessor Company for the period from July 1, 2004
to December 19, 2004, and the nine-month period ended March 31, 2006 (Successor Company - unaudited) and for the Successor Company for the period
from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited) and Predecessor Company for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004, and cash flows
for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 (Successor Company) and for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004 (Predecessor
Company) and the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (Successor Company - unaudited) and for the Successor Company for the period from December 20,
2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited) and Predecessor Company for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Financial instruments

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of
these financial instruments. At June 30, 2005, the carrying amount of the Partnership’s long-term debt approximates fair value based on the Partnership’s
best estimate of interest rates that would be available to the Partnership for similar obligations. At June 30, 2005, the carrying amount of the Partnership’s
variable rate debt approximates fair value due to the variable nature of the interest rates.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Partnership considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
consist of money market accounts and certificates of deposit.

The Partnership had cash balances in banks in excess of the maximum amount insured by the FDIC at June 30, 2005 and as of March 31, 2006 (unaudited).

Trade receivables, net

Trade receivables as of June 30, 2005 are stated net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1.6 million. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of
March 31, 2006 (unaudited) was $1.6 million. The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects management’s estimate of probable losses inherent in the
accounts receivable balance. Management determines the allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience and other currently available
information.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using the first-in, first-out method for propane and other fuels at the
Partnership’s retail locations. Parts are valued using the weighted average cost method. Appliance inventories are valued using the specific identification
method.

Property, plant and equipment

Upon emergence from bankruptcy on December 20, 2004, property, plant and equipment was recorded at estimated fair value in accordance with SOP 90-
7. Additions to property, plant and equipment subsequent to December 20, 2004 are recorded at cost. Except for costs incurred in installing Partnership-
owned tanks at customer locations, depreciation is computed principally using the straight-line method, over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows: buildings and improvements, 10 to 40 years; storage and consumer tanks, 10 to 40 years; and vehicles, equipment, office furnishings and software
costs, 3 to 10 years. Costs incurred installing Partnership-owned tanks at customer locations, net of amounts billed to customers, are capitalized and
depreciated using an accelerated method over 10 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or
the applicable lease terms. When property, plant and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to operations. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, while
replacements and betterments that extend estimated useful lives are capitalized. Amortization of property under capital leases is included in depreciation
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Through December 19, 2004, the Predecessor Company recorded property, plant and equipment at cost. Depreciation was computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: buildings and improvements, 10 to 40 years; storage and consumer tanks, together with
applicable installation costs, 10 to 40 years; and vehicles, equipment, office furnishings, and software costs, 3 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements were
amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the applicable lease terms. When property, plant and equipment were retired or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation were removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss was credited or
charged to operations. Maintenance and repairs were expensed as incurred, while replacements and betterments that extended estimated useful lives were
capitalized. Amortization of property under capital leases was included in total depreciation.

 
16



Goodwill

The Successor Company accounts for and the Predecessor Company accounted for goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 142 eliminates the requirement to amortize goodwill over its estimated
useful life; rather, goodwill is subject to a fair-value based impairment test, which is performed at least annually or more frequently if information indicates
there may be an impairment. SFAS No. 142 requires that an impairment test for goodwill be performed in two steps, (i) impairment is determined based
upon the fair value of a reporting unit as compared to its carrying value and (ii) if there is an impairment, the impairment loss is measured by comparing the
implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. Such valuation process is inherently subject to significant estimates and
assumptions. Changes in assumptions used could affect the results.

Other intangible assets

Upon emergence from bankruptcy on December 20, 2004, identifiable intangible assets were recorded at their estimated fair value in accordance with SOP
90-7. Customer lists, trade names and software are amortized over the terms of the applicable agreements and/or estimated useful lives, generally 3 to 12
years.

Non-compete agreements and customer lists were amortized by the Predecessor Company over the terms of the applicable agreements and/or estimated
useful lives, generally four to ten years. Trade names were amortized over a 40 year period.

Long-lived assets

The Successor Company accounts for and the Predecessor Company accounted for its long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, for purposes of determining and measuring impairment of its long-lived assets. The Partnership’s policy is
to review the value assigned to its long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may not be recoverable,
using an undiscounted cash flow methodology.

Revenue recognition

Sales of propane and refined fuels and the related cost of product are recognized at the time product is delivered to the customer. Revenue from the sale of
propane appliances and equipment is primarily recognized at the time of sale or installation, while revenue from repairs and maintenance is recognized
upon completion of the service. Revenue from the rental of propane storage tanks is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease or the
applicable period to which the prepayment applies, generally one year. Deferred revenue is included in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheets.

Income taxes

Successor Company

Neither the Partnership nor the Operating Company is directly subject to federal and state income taxes. Instead, taxable income or loss is allocated to the
general and limited partners. As a result, no income tax expense has been reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations of the
Partnership or the Operating Company. Through the period ended June 30, 2005, the Successor Company had no active subsidiaries that operated in
corporate form and therefore there was no tax provision and no tax effect on the financial statements of the Partnership for any temporary differences as of
and for the period ended June 30, 2005.

The Successor Company has an active subsidiary that is organized as a corporation which is subject to income taxes. Such subsidiary began operations in
October, 2005. For the nine months ended March 31, 2006, such subsidiary had an operating loss of approximately $1.0 million, for which a deferred tax
benefit of approximately $0.4 million was provided. However, because of the uncertainty of realization of such benefit, a valuation allowance was recorded
for the full deferred tax benefit. Accordingly, no tax provision is reflected in the accompanying statement of operations.
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Predecessor Company

Cornerstone Partners was not directly subject to federal and state income taxes. Instead, taxable income or loss was allocated to the general and limited
partners. As a result, no income tax expense has been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements related to the results of operations of
Cornerstone Partners or the Operating Company. The Predecessor Company had subsidiaries in corporate form which were subject to federal and state
income taxes. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements reflect income taxes related to the operations of those corporate subsidiaries.

In November 2004, the remaining corporate subsidiaries merged into the Operating Partnership in a taxable transaction. The merger resulted in the
elimination of all tax attributes of the subsidiaries, including all net operating loss carryforwards incurred through the date of liquidation. As a result of this
treatment, the Predecessor Company has provided a full valuation allowance for these deferred tax assets.

Derivatives and hedging

The Partnership utilizes forward purchase contracts, which require physical settlement, to acquire a portion of the propane that it resells to its customers to
manage its exposure to unfavorable changes in commodities prices and to assure adequate physical supply. The forward purchase contracts are not
designated as financial instruments and meet the requirement to qualify as normal purchases as defined in SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended by SFAS No. 138 “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities - an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133” and SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
(collectively, “SFAS No. 133”). The forward purchase contracts thus are not adjusted to fair market value.

The Partnership also enters into forward contracts that are net settled to manage risk associated with the commodity price volatility of propane for fixed
sales commitments it has with its customers. These contracts are benchmarked using the New York Mercantile Exchange commodity price. These forward
net settled contracts are derivative financial instruments and are accounted for using the mark-to-market method in accordance with SFAS No. 133. While
the standard requires that all derivatives be reported at fair value on the balance sheet, the changes in the fair value will be reported in different ways
depending on the nature and the effectiveness of the hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 identifies changes in the fair values of the derivatives as being the
result of 1) effective hedging, 2) ineffective hedging or 3) unrelated to hedging. The forward contracts are not designated as effective hedges (as defined by
the Partnership); accordingly, the changes in the fair value of these contracts are recognized as they occur in the Partnership’s consolidated statements of
operations.

Interest Rate Risk

The Partnership is exposed to market risk for changes in interest rates related to its bank credit facilities. The Partnership manages a portion of its interest
rate exposures by utilizing an interest rate swap which allows the Partnership to effectively convert a portion of variable rate debt into fixed rate debt.

The Partnership entered into an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $125.0 million in February 2006. This financial instrument did not qualify for
hedge accounting as of March 31, 2006. Accordingly, changes in the fair value are accounted for in interest expense on the consolidated statements of
operations.

Restructuring charges

The Partnership has established reserves for certain costs associated with restructuring activities as approved by management. These costs are included in
the consolidated statement of operations for the applicable periods (Note 16).

Reorganization expenses

The Partnership expenses costs associated with the Partnership’s reorganization including expenses of administering the Predecessor Company’s
bankruptcy case.

Equity-based compensation

The Partnership adopted an equity incentive plan (the “Equity Plan”) under which a total of 1,420,000 units are available for issuance. The Equity Plan is
designed to attract, retain and motivate key employees, directors and consultants. The Partnership accounts for equity incentives according to the provisions
of Statement of Financial
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Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment,” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”). The Partnership adopted SFAS 123(R) in connection with the adoption
of Fresh Start Accounting. SFAS 123(R) requires employee stock options and rights to purchase shares under stock participation plans to be accounted for
under the fair-value method, and eliminates the ability to account for these instruments under the intrinsic-value method prescribed by APB Opinion
No. 25, which was allowed under the original provisions of SFAS 123. SFAS 123(R) requires the use of an option-pricing model for estimating fair value,
which is amortized to expenses over the requisite periods. The fair-value of the unit awards was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.” SFAS No. 151 clarifies that abnormal
inventory costs such as costs of idle facilities, excess freight and handling costs and wasted materials (spoilage) are required to be recognized as current
period costs. The provisions of SFAS No.151 are effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of
SFAS No. 151 did not have a material effect on the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. SFAS No. 154 established new standards on accounting for
changes in accounting principles. Pursuant to the new rules, all such changes must be accounted for by retrospective application to the financial statements
of prior periods unless it is impracticable to do so. SFAS 154 supersedes Accounting Principles Bulletin (APB) Opinion 2, Accounting for Changes and
SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements, though it carries forward the guidance of those pronouncements with respect
to accounting for changes in estimates, changes in the reporting entity and error corrections. This statement is effective for accounting changes and error
corrections made in years beginning after December 15, 2005, with early adoption permitted for changes and corrections made in years beginning after
May 2005. The Partnership does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 154 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2005, the FASB issued final guidance that clarifies how companies should account for “conditional” asset retirement obligations. FASB
Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations (“FIN 47”), deals with obligations to perform asset retirement activities in
which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future event (e.g., legal requirements surrounding asbestos handling and disposal that are
triggered by demolishing or renovating a facility). In implementing the new guidance, which must be adopted by calendar year enterprises by
December 31, 2005, a company will need to identify its conditional asset retirement obligations and determine whether it can reasonably estimate the fair
value of each obligation. If the company can reasonably estimate the fair value of an obligation, it will need to recognize a liability for that obligation. The
Partnership will adopt FIN 47 by June 30, 2006, as required. The Partnership does not expect the adoption of FIN 47 to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets - An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29. The provisions of this
statement are effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in periods beginning after June 15, 2005. This statement eliminates the exception to fair
value for exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchange transactions that do not have commercial substance -
that is, transactions that are not expected to result in significant changes in the cash flows of the reporting entity. The adoption of SFAS No. 153 did not
have a significant impact on the Partnership’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 4 – Inventories

The major components of inventory consisted of the following:
 

   
June 30,

2005   
March 31,

2006
      (Unaudited)
Propane   $ 8,706  $ 10,938
Other fuels    352   234
Appliances and other    710   654
Parts    827   843

        

Total inventory   $10,595  $ 12,669
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NOTE 5 – Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:
 

   
June 30,

2005   
March 31,

2006
      (Unaudited)
Land   $ 20,415  $ 20,380
Buildings and improvements    12,002   12,032
Storage and consumer tanks    101,944   100,985
Vehicles    30,925   30,569
Tank installation assets    27,838   29,144
Other equipment    3,497   3,924
Construction in progress    619   6

        

Total    197,240   197,040
Less: Accumulated depreciation    9,734   23,712

        

Net property, plant and equipment   $187,506  $ 173,328
        

Depreciation expense for Successor for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 approximated $10.7 million. Depreciation expense for
Predecessor for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004 approximated $8.7 million. For the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited),
depreciation expense approximated $14.8 million. Depreciation expense for the period from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited)
approximated $6.0 million. The gross amount of property, plant and equipment recorded under capital leases was approximately $4.9 million and $4.8
million, with accumulated amortization of approximately $0.9 million and $2.2 million as of June 30, 2005 and March 31,2006 (unaudited), respectively.

Tank installation assets consist of costs incurred by the Partnership subsequent to December 20, 2004 to install propane storage tanks at customer locations
and the estimated fair value ($27.4 million) of the installations of tanks existing at customer locations at December 20, 2004.

NOTE 6 – Intangible Assets

Intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization at June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), and projected amortization expenses for the
fiscal year ending June 30 and the nine months ended March 31, 2006, are as follows:

 
   Customer Lists  Trade Names  Other   Total
Balance, June 30, 2005   $ 18,512  $ 14,820  $2,206  $35,538
Accumulated amortization    1,047   741   365   2,153

                

Net at June 30, 2005    17,465   14,079   1,841   33,385
Additions (Unaudited)    50   —     75   125
Amortization expense (Unaudited)    1,097   1,112   569   2,778

                

Net at March 31, 2006 (Unaudited)   $ 16,418  $ 12,967  $1,347  $30,732
                

Projected amortization for the quarter ending June 30, 2006   $ 430  $ 371  $ 190  $ 991
Projected amortization for the fiscal years ending June 30,         

2007    1,718   1,482   760   3,960
2008    1,718   1,482   393   3,593
2009    1,718   1,482   4   3,204
2010    1,718   1,482   —     3,200
2011    1,718   1,482   —     3,200

Thereafter    7,398   5,186   —     12,584
                

Total   $ 16,418  $ 12,967  $1,347  $30,732
                

Amortization expense for Successor for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 amounted to $2.2 million. Amortization expense for
Predecessor for the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004 amounted to $1.0 million. For the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited),
amortization expense amounted to $2.8 million. Amortization expense for the period from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited) was
approximately $0.6 million. At June 30, 2005, management performed an impairment test of the recorded goodwill and determined that there was no
impairment.
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NOTE 7 - Debt

Debt for the Successor Company consisted of the following:
 

   
June 30,

2005   
March 31,

2006
      (Unaudited)
Credit facility   $ —    $ —  
Credit agreement    124,375   123,438
Notes payable    271   113
Capital leases and other debt    2,920   1,808

        

Total    127,566   125,359
Less: current maturities    2,875   2,424

        

Total long-term debt   $124,691  $ 122,935
        

Credit Facility

Upon emergence from bankruptcy, the Operating Company obtained a senior secured revolving credit facility in the maximum principal amount of $50.0
million. Amounts borrowed bear interest at an annual rate of LIBOR plus 2.5%. Undrawn balances incur monthly fees at an annual rate of 0.50%. This
credit facility is collateralized by inventory, equipment, receivables and real property of the Operating Company. Titan Partners and the General Partner
have guaranteed this facility. The Operating Company has not drawn on this facility other than for the issuance of letters of credit. This facility expires in
December 2009. Outstanding letters of credit under this facility amounted to $7.7 and $11.8 million at June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited),
respectively.

Credit Agreement

Pursuant to the Plan, the outstanding Senior Secured Credit Facility and the Senior Secured Notes of the Predecessor Company were converted into $125.0
million in term notes from the Operating Company upon emergence from bankruptcy. These notes are collateralized by a second lien on inventory,
equipment, receivables and real property of the Operating Company. Titan Partners and the General Partner have guaranteed these notes. The notes bear
interest at an annual rate of LIBOR plus 4.50%. The interest rate at June 30, 2005 was 7.81%. The interest rate at March 31, 2006 was 9.44% (unaudited).
Principal is amortized 1% per year and is payable, with accrued interest, in quarterly installments with the balance due in December 2009.

Notes payable and capital leases

Notes payable consist of mortgages and obligations under non-compete agreements. At June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), these carried
interest rates ranging from 7.25% to 10.0% per annum, with payments due periodically through the fiscal year 2010.

Aggregate annual maturities of the Successor Company’s long-term debt outstanding, pursuant to the terms of the various credit agreements are as follows:
 

   
Credit

Agreement   
Notes

Payable  
Capital leases
and other debt  Total

Quarter ending June 30, 2006 (Unaudited)   $ 313  $ 60  $ 441  $ 814
Year ending June 30,         

2007    1,250   53   837   2,140
2008    1,250   —     369   1,619
2009    1,250   —     110   1,360
2010    1,250   —     51   1,301
2011    1,250   —     —     1,250

Thereafter    116,875   —     —     116,875
                

Total   $123,438  $ 113  $ 1,808  $125,359
                

 
21



Predecessor Company

On November 8, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Predecessor Company’s Plan of Reorganization and on December 20, 2004, the Predecessor
Company’s Plan of Reorganization was consummated. As a result, substantially all of the Predecessor Company’s debt securities were settled and cancelled
(Note 1). Following the Filing Date, on June 3, 2004, no interest expense related to certain pre-petition debt has been accrued, which would have been
approximately $4.6 million from June 3, 2004 through June 30, 2004 and $30.0 million for the period from July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004, as
none of the allowed claims against the Debtors has underlying collateral with a fair value in excess of the principal amount of the debt. The following
details of the Predecessor Company’s debt are reflective of events occurring prior to the Filing Date.

Senior Secured Credit Agreement

The Senior Secured Credit Agreement provided maximum borrowing of $50.0 million to be used for seasonal working capital business needs and general
Predecessor Company purposes. This Senior Secured Credit Agreement provided for a revolving facility of up to $39.3 million including letters of credit
and a term loan of $10.7 million. Letter of credit capacity was $15.0 million, subject to the revolving facility limit. Loans under the Senior Secured Credit
Agreement were made at variable annual interest rates based on prime or Eurodollar interest rates and ranged from 3.94% to 7.42%. In addition, a
maintenance fee payable quarterly by the Operating Partnership, regardless of the amounts borrowed, ranged from 0.25% to 0.50% depending upon
specific financial ratios. The loan matured on November 30, 2002 and the Predecessor Company was in default after that date.

Prior to the loan maturity in November 2002, Credit Suisse First Boston, the lead lender under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement and Northwestern, the
guarantor of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement, notified the Predecessor Company that it had not satisfied the conditions to make further draws under
the Senior Secured Credit Agreement. During August 2002, Northwestern replaced Credit Suisse First Boston as the lead lender under the Senior Secured
Credit Agreement.

At June 30, 2004, there were no outstanding letters of credit under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement. Loans outstanding under the Senior Secured
Credit Agreement were variable interest rate loans based on the prime rate. As of June 30, 2004, the Operating Partnership remained in technical and
payment default of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement.

Senior Secured Notes

The Operating Partnership had obligations through Senior Secured Note Agreements (the “Senior Secured Notes”) which were collateralized, pari passu,
with its obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement.

From December 1996 to November 1999, the Operating Partnership issued $365 million of Senior Secured Notes in various tranches. The notes bore
interest payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 7.33% to 8.27%. Principal was payable in annual installments aggregating $51.2 million, with maturity
dates between July 31, 2005 and January 31, 2013.

The Senior Secured Credit Agreement and the Senior Secured Notes were initially collateralized by the Operating Partnership’s trade receivables,
inventories and customer storage tanks.

On July 31, 2002 the Operating Partnership defaulted on an approximately $5.6 million interest payment due on certain of its Senior Secured Notes and the
Senior Secured Credit Agreement. On December 31, 2002 the Operating Partnership defaulted on an approximately $8.3 million interest payment due on
its remaining Senior Secured Notes. During the year ended June 30, 2004 the Operating Partnership made payments on the outstanding accrued interest of
the Senior Secured Notes and the Senior Secured Credit Agreement totaling $28.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

The Operating Partnership entered into Forbearance Agreements dated July 2, 2003 and Forbearance Extension Agreements dated October 31, 2003
(collectively, the “Forbearance Agreements”) with the holders of the Senior Secured Notes forbearing the holders from exercising their remedies against
the Operating Partnership until the earlier of January 9, 2004 or any additional default (such period, the “Forbearance Period”). As part of the Forbearance
Agreements, the Operating Partnership had, among other things, agreed to comply with certain additional covenants, consented to certain amendments to
the note agreements with the holders of the Senior Secured Notes and provided additional collateral, in the form of liens on the Operating Partnership’s
unencumbered real estate and liens on all personal property, including all cash and bank accounts.
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The Forbearance Agreements provided for an interest rate increase to 11.27% per annum compounding monthly for all of the Senior Secured Notes and
that a “make whole” amount (per the Senior Secured Note agreements) due on a prepayment to the holders of the Senior Secured Notes had been set at
$66.4 million and was due and payable as of July 2, 2003, which was recorded during the first quarter of fiscal year ended 2004. Such “make whole”
amount was designed to compensate the holders of the Senior Secured Notes for the lower market interest rates assumed on the reinvestment of note
prepayment proceeds. The holders of the Senior Secured Notes also agreed that the “make whole” amount accrued interest from July 2, 2003 at 11.27% per
annum compounding monthly and to forbear from demanding the “make whole” amount or the interest thereon through January 9, 2004.

On February 6, 2004, a majority of the holders of the Senior Secured Notes provided notice to the Operating Partnership, citing that the agreed events of
default identified in the Forbearance Agreements had not been remedied or cured and other events of default had occurred and were continuing, stating that
all obligations under the Senior Secured Notes were accelerated and declared to be immediately due and payable. The total of all such obligations under the
Senior Secured Notes as of June 30, 2004 approximated $560.0 million.

Senior Notes

Cornerstone Partners had obligations under its Senior Notes which were structurally subordinated to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement and the Senior
Secured Notes to the extent of the assets securing indebtedness thereunder. Cornerstone Partners defaulted on approximately $45.0 million due on June 30,
2004, $3.0 million on June 30, 2003 and $2.8 million due on December 31, 2002 under the Senior Notes. Cornerstone Partners did not make payments on
the Senior Notes subsequent to these dates. On September 19, 2003, the holders of the Senior Notes provided a notice to the Predecessor Company citing
the missed payments of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003. This notice declared all unpaid principal and accrued interest to the date of acceleration on
all outstanding senior notes, together with the applicable “make whole” amount with respect to the Senior Notes, to be due and payable immediately. Such
“make whole” amount was designed to compensate the holders of the Senior Notes for the lower market interest rates assumed on the reinvestment of note
prepayment proceeds. The “make whole” amount with respect to the Senior Notes was approximately $11.4 million and was accrued during the year ended
June 30, 2004. These notes bore interest at 10.26%.

The Predecessor Company’s Plan of Reorganization, as approved by the Bankruptcy Court, provided for a pool of $12.3 million for all unsecured claims of
Cornerstone Partners, including all claims under the Senior Notes. As of June 30, 2005, approximately $0.9 million remained in this pool.

Subordinated Loan – Special General Partner

During August 2002, in order to address its immediate liquidity needs, the Operating Partnership entered into an unsecured loan agreement with its Special
General Partner (the “Subordinated Loan”). During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Operating Partnership entered into various amendments to this
unsecured loan agreement; as of June 30, 2004, the outstanding principal balance owing to the Special General Partner was $25.6 million. Loans under the
Subordinated Loan were made at variable annual interest rates based on prime or Eurodollar interest rates. At June 30, 2004, the interest rate on the
Subordinated Loan was based upon the prime rate, which was 4.0% per annum. The Subordinated Loan was subordinated to the Senior Secured Credit
Agreement, the Senior Secured Notes and the Senior Notes discussed above.

Other Notes Payable and Capital Leases

Notes payable consisted of mortgages, capital leases and non-compete agreements. At June 30, 2004, these notes payable carried interest rates ranging from
7.25% to 10.5% per annum with payments due periodically through the fiscal year 2010. The net book value of assets under capital leases approximated the
carrying value of the capital lease obligations.

NOTE 8 – Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue, consisting principally of tank rental paid in advance that is recognized over the tank rental term or period of the prepayment, consisted of
$3.3 million (included in Accrued liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets) as of June 30, 2005, and $3.6 million at March 31, 2006 (unaudited).
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NOTE 9- Derivatives and Forward Contracts

As of June 30, 2005, the notional and fair value of outstanding forward contracts was approximately $7.0 million. As of March 31, 2006 (unaudited), the
notional value of outstanding forward contracts was approximately $1.6 million and the fair value of the forward contracts were approximately $1.7
million. Because these forward contracts will be net settled, they qualify as derivatives instruments under SFAS No. 133. The Predecessor Company
recognized a loss of $0.6 million for the period ended December 19, 2004 to adjust the forward contracts to fair value. The Partnership recognized a gain of
$0.7 million for the period from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited), and a gain of $0.1 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2006
(unaudited)to adjust the forward contracts to fair value.

As of June 30, 2005, the Partnership had commitments to purchase 2.6 million gallons of propane at specified benchmark average rates, as defined in the
agreements. The fair value of these contracts was $2.2 million. As of March 31, 2006 (unaudited), the Partnership had no commitments to purchase
propane at specified benchmark average rates. These forward purchase contracts meet the requirement to qualify as normal purchases under SFAS No. 133
and therefore are not considered derivative instruments.

The Partnership also enters into formal and informal sales commitments with its customers, whereby the Partnership offers a fixed price per gallon for
propane to its customers over a specified period. The sales commitments are not designated as financial instruments under SFAS No. 133. These sales
commitments, which require physical settlement, meet the requirement to qualify as normal sales as defined in SFAS No. 133 and are not adjusted to fair
market value. As of June 30, 2005, the Partnership had commitments to sell approximately 7.2 million gallons of propane to its customers at fixed prices.
At March 31, 2006 (unaudited), the Partnership had commitments to sell approximately 1.7 million gallons of propane to its customers at fixed prices.

NOTE 10 - Partners’ Capital and Distributions of Available Cash

Partners’ capital at June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), consisted of 7,130,528 Common Units, representing a 49.1% limited partnership
interest, 7,100,000 Subordinated Units, representing a 48.9% limited partnership interest, and a 2% general partnership interest. The General Partner holds
the entire general partnership interest and all of Titan Partners’ Incentive Distribution Rights, as described below (collectively, the “GP Interests”).

The Agreement of Limited Partnership of Titan Partners (the “Partnership Agreement”) requires that Titan Partners make a distribution of all Available
Cash (as defined below) to the holders of its units and general partnership interests within 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter, subject to the
payment of incentive distributions to the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights to the extent that certain target levels of distributions are achieved. The
term Available Cash generally means, with respect to any fiscal quarter, all cash on hand at the end of such quarter, plus working capital borrowings after
the end of such quarter with respect to such quarter, less reserves established by the General Partner in its reasonable discretion to provide for the proper
conduct of the partnership’s business, to comply with applicable laws and agreements and, in certain circumstances, to provide funds for future
distributions with respect to any one or more of the next four quarters.

Distributions by the Partnership will generally be made 98% to the Common and Subordinated Unitholders and 2% to the General Partner, subject to the
payment of incentive distributions to the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights to the extent that certain target levels of cash distributions are achieved.
To the extent there is sufficient Available Cash, the holders of Common Units have the right to receive a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50 per
Common Unit (the “Minimum Quarterly Distribution”), plus any arrearages, prior to any distribution of Available Cash to the holders of Subordinated
Units. Common Units will not accrue arrearages for any quarter after the Subordination Period (as described below) and Subordinated Units will not accrue
any arrearages with respect to distributions for any quarter.

The Incentive Distribution Rights provide for the holder (currently, the General Partner) to receive an increasing share of distributions after certain
distribution thresholds are met. In general, for any quarter, if Titan Partners distributes Available Cash from operating surplus to the Common Units,
Subordinated Units and general partnership interests in an amount equal to the Minimum Quarterly Distribution, including distributions of Available Cash
from operating surplus on outstanding Common Units in an amount necessary to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the Minimum
Quarterly Distribution from prior quarters, then Titan Partners will distribute any additional Available Cash from operating surplus for that quarter among
the Common Units and Subordinated Units and the GP Interests in the following manner:

(a) First, 98% to all holders of Common Units and Subordinated Units, pro rata and 2% to the holder of the GP Interests, until each holder of
Common Units and Subordinated Units receives a total of $0.55 per unit for that quarter;
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(b) Second, 85% to all holders of Common Units and Subordinated Units, pro rata and 15% to the holder of the GP Interests, until each holder of
Common Units and Subordinated Units receives a total of $0.625 per unit for that quarter;

(c) Third, 75% to all holders of Common Units and Subordinated Units, pro rata and 25% to the holder of the GP Interests, until each holder of
Common Units and Subordinated Units receives a total of $0.75 per unit for that quarter; and

(d) Thereafter, 50% to all holders of Common Units and Subordinated Units, pro rata and 50% to the holder of the GP Interests.

In general and subject to certain other conditions set forth in the Partnership Agreement, the Subordination Period will continue until the first day of any
quarter beginning after December 31, 2009 in which (i) distributions of Available Cash from operating surplus on the Common Units and the Subordinated
Units for each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding such date equal or exceed the Minimum Quarterly
Distribution and (ii) there is no arrearage in the payment of the Minimum Quarterly Distributions on the Common Units. Each outstanding Subordinated
Unit will covert into a Common Unit at the end of the Subordination Period.

In addition, prior to the end of the Subordination Period, 1,775,000 of the outstanding Subordinated Units will convert into Common Units on a one-for-
one basis immediately after the distribution of Available Cash in respect to the first fiscal quarter ending after December 31, 2007 in which certain
conditions are met, including (i) distributions of Available Cash from operating surplus on the Common Units and the Subordinated Units for each of the
three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding such date equal or exceed the Minimum Quarterly Distribution and
(ii) there is no arrearage in the payment of the Minimum Quarterly Distributions on the Common Units. An additional 1,775,000 of the outstanding
Subordinated Units, if any, will convert into Common Units on a one-for-one basis immediately after the distribution of Available Cash in respect to the
first fiscal quarter ending after December 31, 2008 in which the same conditions are met, provided that such conversion will not occur until at least one
year following the conversion described in the immediately preceding sentence.

The Partnership made distributions of $7.1 million with respect to its Common and Subordinated Units and $0.1 million with respect to the GP Interests,
during the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005. The Partnership made distributions of $21.3 million with respect to its Common and
Subordinated Units and $0.4 million with respect to the GP Interests, during the period from July 1, 2005 through March 31, 2006 (unaudited).

Historically, the Predecessor Company made distributions to its partners within 45 days after the end of the fiscal quarter in an aggregate amount equal to
their available cash for such quarter. There were no distributions paid by the Predecessor Company during the periods presented.

Generally, Cornerstone Partners’ net income and losses were allocated to the partners’ capital accounts in the following proportions: 2.0% to the general
partners, 70.9% to common unit-holders and 27.1% to the subordinated unit-holders. However, Cornerstone Partners’ partnership agreement provided that
losses in excess of the common and subordinated unit-holders’ capital accounts were allocated 100% to the general partners. Pursuant to this provision, all
of the Partnership losses were allocated to the general partners during the period from July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004. The Cornerstone Partners’
partnership agreement required the allocation of 100% of future net income to the general partners until this excess loss allocation has been recovered.

NOTE 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Insurance

At December 31, 2004, the Partnership terminated the Predecessor Company’s full coverage insurance program and entered into a high-deductible
insurance program covering various types of insurance including general liability, auto liability and statutory coverage. The Partnership is generally
responsible for the first $250,000 of any claim. The Partnership has similar programs in place for medical coverage. As of June 30, 2005, and March 31,
2006 (unaudited) the Partnership had reserves recorded in accrued liabilities of $2.7 million and $4.7 million, respectively, to cover estimated losses not
covered by insurance under this program.

The Successor Company has assumed certain obligations of self-insurance programs maintained by Empire and Synergy for any incidents occurring prior
to December 17, 1996. These companies had insurance coverage for comprehensive general liability and vehicle liability, for catastrophic exposures as well
as those risks required to be insured by law or contract. These companies retained a significant portion of certain expected losses related primarily to
comprehensive general liability and vehicle liability. Estimated liabilities for self-insured losses were recorded based upon the Predecessor Company’s
estimates of the aggregate self-insured liability for claims incurred.
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The Predecessor Company maintained various types of insurance including general liability, auto liability and statutory coverage. The Predecessor
Company’s primary insurance was a full indemnity program through December 2004. Prior to November 1, 2001, the Predecessor Company maintained a
self-insured program under which the Predecessor Company was generally responsible for the first $250,000 of any claim.

As of June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), the Successor Company had reserves recorded in accrued liabilities of $2.8 million and $1.6 million,
respectively to cover pre-petition estimated losses not covered by insurance of the Predecessor Company that were assumed according to the Plan.

The obligations covered by various insurance contracts remain on the balance sheet, as the Partnership and the Predecessor Company remain liable to the
extent that the carriers do not meet their obligations under the insurance contracts. The amounts receivable under the contracts were estimated to be $7.4
million at June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited) and are included in other current assets.

Environmental Cleanup Liability

The Partnership is currently investigating a potential environmental liability in Maryland. The Partnership is unable to predict the outcome of this
investigation and accordingly, no adjustments have been made in the consolidated financial statements.

Predecessor Company Securities Litigation and SEC Investigation

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) conducted an investigation relating to the Predecessor Company’s financial statements and related
disclosure for fiscal years 2000 and 2001 and the write-off of $9.8 million of unsubstantiated balances at fiscal year-end 2001, among other things. On
September 23, 2005, the SEC filed actions against five former officers of the Predecessor Company alleging that they were responsible for reporting
materially false financial results in SEC filings and press releases for the period June 2000 through September 2001. Two of the former officers settled the
SEC’s case against them at the time of its filing. The SEC’s action is pending in federal district court in the Northern District of California against the
remaining three officers. By the time of the bar date in the Predecessor Company’s bankruptcy enjoining actions against the Predecessor Company, the SEC
had not filed any action against the Predecessor Company. The Successor Company cooperated with the SEC in its investigation. While the Partnership is
not a defendant in the SEC action, the company has an obligation to respond to discovery requests for documents and witness testimony.

In 2003, the Predecessor Company and others were named as defendants in various lawsuits filed in federal, state and municipal courts. These lawsuits,
which stated various federal and state law claims based on the conduct that was the subject of the SEC investigation, were expunged in the Plan approved
by the Bankruptcy Court as they relate to the Predecessor Company and the Partnership. The expunged lawsuits include two shareholder derivative actions
filed in California state court, a purported class action filed in federal district court in California and a lawsuit filed by a unitholder of the Predecessor
Company in a municipal court in Missouri. While the Predecessor Company is no longer a defendant in these cases, the cases continue to go forward
against other defendants.

Precision Investment, LLC, et al. v. Cornerstone Propane, L.P.

The plaintiffs commenced an action in 1998 against the Operating Partnership in the Circuit Court of Laclede County, Missouri, regarding the Operating
Partnership’s use of several properties owned by the plaintiffs. In March 2002, the trial court found in favor of the plaintiffs. The Operating Partnership’s
appeal of this verdict is currently pending. The Operating Partnership posted a bond with the court to cover the appeal of this verdict and reserved an
amount which management believes is adequate to cover any potential liability. Management cannot predict the final outcome of this matter, but does not
believe that the outcome will have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position or cash flows of the Partnership.

Other Litigation

The Partnership is from time to time involved in various types of litigation concerning claims arising in the ordinary course of its business. The Partnership
does not believe that any pending or threatened litigation will have a material adverse effect on the Partnership’s results of operations, cash flows, or its
financial condition.
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NOTE 12 – Equity-based Compensation

In December 2004 and January 2005, 1,039,000 options were granted to key employees by the Successor Company. The options have an exercise price of
$23.00 per unit. The options vest ratably over four years (which may be accelerated under certain conditions) and expire 10 years from the grant date. As of
June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), none of the outstanding options were exercisable and there have been no forfeitures since the options were
granted.

The fair value of the options was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Based upon the valuation methodology used, no value was assigned
to the options at the date of grant.

The assumptions used in that determination are discussed below.

Expected volatilities are based on the volatility of publicly-traded propane master limited partnerships and other factors. The expected term of the options
represents management’s reasonable estimate of the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within
the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. A summary of the key assumptions and
estimates used follows:

 
   June 30, 2005 
Expected volatility   18.20%
Expected distributions   8.70%
Risk-free rate   3.75%
Expected term (in years)   6.25 

In July 2005, the Partnership granted 130,000 options to another member of management under the same terms and conditions as the original grants. The
Partnership valued the grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model with updated assumptions. Based upon the valuation model, no value was assigned to
the options at the date of grant.

Changes in the Partnership’s outstanding options are as follows:
 

   
Number of

Units   

Weighted
average

Exercise Price
per Unit   

Weighted
average

remaining
contractual
term (years)

Options outstanding December 20, 2004   —      
Options granted   1,039,000  $ 23.00  9.50
Options exercised   —      

   
 

   

Options outstanding June 30, 2005   1,039,000  $ 23.00  9.50
Options granted   130,000  $ 23.00  9.25
Options converted to deferred units   (259,750) $ 23.00  

   
 

   

Options outstanding March 31, 2006 (unaudited)   909,250  $ 23.00  8.82
   

 

   

In December 2004 and January 2005, 1,039,000 phantom units were granted to certain key employees by the Successor Company. These phantom units
provide for credits to deferred compensation accounts for participants when the fair value of the Partnership’s common units exceed a base value at
specified valuation dates. The Partnership has recognized total compensation expense related to the phantom units of approximately $0.4 million, $0.7
million and $2.0 million for the period from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited), the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005 and
the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited), respectively. The intrinsic value of the outstanding options was $1.6 million, $1.3 million and $0.0
million as of March 31, 2005 (unaudited), June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006 (unaudited), respectively.
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In December 2005 the Partnership modified the option and phantom unit grants under the Equity Plan. The modification provided that, for the first year of
vesting under the Equity Plan approximately 260,000 options and phantom units would be cancelled in exchange for a grant of deferred units under a
deferred compensation plan. The fair value of the deferred units approximated the fair value of the cancelled options and phantom units. The intrinsic value
of the deferred units was approximately $2.6 million on the modification date.

Total expected remaining compensation expense related to the 779,250 outstanding phantom units at March 31, 2006 (unaudited) will be variable based
upon the valuation of the underlying partnership units over the vesting period but is estimated to be approximately $4.4 million.

The vesting of the option and phantom units is accelerated under certain conditions including, but not limited to a change in control event or the grantee’s
death or disability while an employee of the Partnership.

In December 2004, an executive of the partnership was granted 20,353 common units. Based upon the estimated value of the partnership units at the date of
grant, compensation expense of approximately $0.2 million is being recognized over the vesting period. These units vest after 5 years but can be
accelerated under circumstances similar to the options and phantom units.

Refer to Note 18 concerning subsequent sale of the Partnership and vesting of all unit options.

NOTE 13 - Employee Benefit Plans

The Partnership maintains a defined contribution retirement plan under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “401k Plan”) available to
substantially all employees, provided certain requirements are met. Employees who elect to participate may contribute a percentage of their salaries to the
401k Plan. The Partnership’s contributions were 40% of the employee’s contributions to the 401k Plan up to a maximum of 5% of the employee’s salary.
Contributions to the 401k Plan included in operating, general and administrative expenses amounted to $0.3 million, $0.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.5
million for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005, period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004, and the period from December 20, 2004
to March 31, 2005 (unaudited), and the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited), respectively.

NOTE 14 - Operating Leases

The Partnership leases retail sales offices, storage sites, administrative office space and equipment under cancelable and noncancelable operating leases
expiring in various years through fiscal year 2015. These leases generally contain renewal options and require the Partnership to pay all executory costs
(property taxes, maintenance and insurance). Operating lease rental expense included in operating, general and administrative expenses amounted to $1.8
million $1.9 million, $3.2 million, and $1.1 million for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005, the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19,
2004, the nine months ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited), and the period from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited), respectively.

Future annual minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases outstanding as of June 30, 2005 are:
 

2006   $3,069
2007    2,298
2008    1,607
2009    920
2010    550

Thereafter    1,355
    

  $9,799
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Future annual minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases outstanding as of March 31, 2006 (unaudited) are:
 

Remaining in 2006   $ 1,202
2007    4,239
2008    3,460
2009    2,760
2010    2,275
2011    748

Thereafter    1,073
    

  $15,757
    

As a result of the Plan, leases with future minimum payments aggregating $3.9 million were rejected by the debtors. Assets covered by these leases were
returned to the lessors and the lessors had an unsecured claim in the Predecessor Company’s bankruptcy case.

NOTE 15 – Concentration of Business

The Partnership purchases a substantial portion of its inventory from one supplier. This amounted to $113.0 million during the period from December 20,
2004 to June 30, 2005, $80.1 million during the period from July 1, 2004 to December 19, 2004, $170.2 million for the nine months ending March 31,
2006 (unaudited), and $81.2 million for the period from December 20, 2004 to March 31, 2005 (unaudited). At June 30, 2005 and March 31, 2006
(unaudited), the amount due to the supplier included in accounts payable was approximately $3.5 million and $6.3 million, respectively.

NOTE 16 – Restructuring Charges

Both the Successor Company and the Predecessor Company incurred costs in connection with the restructuring of their operations. These costs included
expenses to relocate the Partnership’s headquarters to a new office in Florence, Kentucky and severance packages to certain employees in connection with
the closing of certain offices and the restructuring of the Partnership’s retail operations. The reserve for restructuring expenses is as follows:

 
   Severance costs  Field restructuring  Total  
Liability at December 20, 2004   $ —    $ —    $ —   
Provision    204   549   753 
Amounts paid    (177)  (549)  (726)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Liability at June 30, 2005    27   —     27 

Provision    806   1,395   2,201 
Amounts paid    (833)  (1,395)  (2,228)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Liability at March 31, 2006 (unaudited)   $ —    $ —    $ —   
    

 

   

 

   

 

Restructuring expenses consisted of the amounts shown as “Provision” in the table above for the period from December 20, 2004 to June 30, 2005, and the
nine months ended March 31, 2006 (unaudited).
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NOTE 17 – Reorganization Expenses

Both the Successor Company and the Predecessor Company incurred costs in connection with the reorganization of their operations. These costs included
the administration of the Predecessor Company’s Chapter 11 reorganization and related activities, as follows:

 

   

Successor Company
For the period from

December 20, 2004 to
June 30, 2005      

Predecessor
Company

For the period from
July 1, 2004 to

December 19, 2004
Turnaround Consulting Firm   $ 828    $ 7,470
Restructuring counsel    1,348     4,117
Financial and legal advisors    1,783     7,936
Severance and retention agreements    —       1,375

          

Total reorganization expenses   $ 3,959    $ 20,898
          

 

 

  

Successor
Company

For the
nine months

ended March 31,
2006

(Unaudited)

  

Successor
Company

For the period from
December 20, 2004
to March 31, 2005

(Unaudited)

     Predecessor
Company

For the period from
July 1, 2004 to

December 19, 2004         
Turnaround Consulting Firm   $ 180  $ 752    $ 7,470
Restructuring counsel    207   619     4,117
Financial and legal advisors    769   1,002     7,936
Severance and retention agreements    —     45     1,375
Other    661   —       —  

              

Total reorganization expenses   $ 1,817  $ 2,418    $ 20,898
              

NOTE 18– Event Subsequent to the Date of the Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Unaudited)

On April 20, 2006, the Partnership and its general partner signed a definitive agreement with Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (“ETP”) under which ETP
acquired, on June 1, 2006, all of the Partnership’s general and limited partner ownership interests for a total consideration of approximately $562 million
plus working capital as of June 1, 2006, which includes the payoff of the Partnership’s then-outstanding long-term debt. All of the Partnership’s outstanding
unit options immediately vested in connection with the transfer of control.
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Exhibit 99.3

ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

Following are Energy Transfer Partner’s, L.P.’s (“ETP”) unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of May 31, 2006 and unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated statement of operations for the nine months ended May 31, 2006 and the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005. The unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated financial statements give pro forma effect to the following transactions:
 

 

•  The planned issuance of $260.7 million of ETP’s debt and approximately $301.5 million of proceeds net of estimated offering costs and underwriter’s
discount from the issuance of 7.2 million common units to finance the acquisition of Titan Energy Partners LP and Titan Energy GP LLC (collectively,
“Titan” or the “Successor Company”). The entire initial closing purchase price ($562.2 million net of cash acquired of approximately $40.7 million, as
of March 31, 2006) for the acquisition of Titan was initially financed with funds advanced under ETP’s revolving credit facility. These borrowings are
expected to be repaid as soon as practicable with the proceeds from the issuance of ETP’s public debt and common units. For the purpose of this pro
forma presentation, the interest rate on the public debt is estimated at 6.32% and the expected per common unit value of $44.61 is based on the average
of the closing prices for the 5-day period ended July 14, 2006, and

 

 •  The acquisition of Titan which closed on June 1, 2006 (the “Titan acquisition”).

Titan is the successor entity of Cornerstone Propane Partners, L.P. (the Predecessor) and is a marketer of propane and refined fuels in the United States
serving approximately 331,000 residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural customers from approximately 145 customer service centers in 33 states as of
June 1, 2006. Titan continued the business of the Predecessor Company upon emergence from bankruptcy (see accompanying financial statements of Titan for
additional information related to the bankruptcy process). The core business of the Successor Company consists principally of (a) the retail marketing and
distribution of propane for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural and other retail uses; (b) the repair and maintenance of propane heating systems and
appliances; and (c) the sale of propane-related supplies, appliances and other equipment. Titan’s operations are located in the east, south, central and west coast
regions of the United States.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements include the following:
 

 
•  the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet of ETP as of May 31, 2006, which presents the pro forma effects as if the Titan

acquisition and related offerings occurred on May 31, 2006;
 

 
•  the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations of ETP for the nine months ended May 31, 2006, which presents the pro

forma effects of the Titan acquisition and related offerings as if such transactions occurred on September 1, 2004 (the beginning of fiscal 2005); and,
 

 
•  the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations of ETP for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, which presents the pro

forma effect of the Titan acquisition and related offerings as if such transactions occurred on September 1, 2004.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are based on certain assumptions and do not purport to be indicative of the
results which actually would have been achieved if the Titan acquisition had been completed on the dates indicated. Moreover, they do not project ETP’s financial
position or results of operations for any future date or period.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements are provided for informational purposes only and should be read in conjunction with
the audited and unaudited financial statements of Titan included in this Form 8-K, the ETP Form 10-K/A for the year ended August 31, 2005 and the ETP Form
10-Q for the nine month period ended May 31, 2006.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet reflects the unaudited balance sheet of ETP as of



May 31, 2006 (the end of ETP’s third quarter of fiscal 2006) and the unaudited balance sheet of Titan as of March 31, 2006. The unaudited pro forma interim
statement of operations reflects the nine months ended May 31, 2006 for ETP and the nine months ended March 31, 2006 for Titan. The unaudited pro forma
annual statement of operations reflects the year ended August 31, 2005 for ETP and the period from December 20, 2004 through June 30, 2005 for the Titan
“Successor Company” and July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004 for the Titan “Predecessor Company.” As discussed in the accompanying audited financial
statements for Titan, the financial statements of Successor Company and Predecessor Company are prepared on a different basis of accounting due to the adoption
of fresh start accounting upon emergence from bankruptcy. The statements of operations of the Successor and Predecessor entities are combined in the pro forma
presentation solely for purposes of complying with Article 11 of Regulation S-X.

The accompanying pro forma financial statements are preliminary as the purchase price allocation reflected in the pro forma statements has not been
completed. ETP’s management has engaged an appraisal firm to prepare an appraisal of the Titan tangible and identifiable intangible assets to support the
purchase price allocation. Such appraisal is expected to be completed by August 31, 2006. The purchase price is affected by the amount of current assets and
liabilities at the closing date (June 1, 2006), and the closing date balance sheet will not be finalized until approximately August 15, 2006. Management believes
that the final purchase price allocation will be finalized by August 31, 2006. The purchase price allocation reflected in the accompanying pro forma financial
statements is based on the best estimates available at this time and on the unaudited balance sheet of Titan as of March 31, 2006. There is no guarantee that the
preliminary allocation, and consequently the pro forma financial statements, will not change. To the extent that the final allocation results in an increased
allocation to goodwill, this amount would not be subject to amortization, but would be subject to an annual impairment testing and if necessary, written-down to a
lower fair value should circumstances warrant. To the extent the final allocation results in a decrease to the preliminary allocation to goodwill done for the
purpose of preparing these pro forma financial statements, the amount would be subject to depreciation or amortization which would result in a decrease to the
estimated pro forma income reflected in the accompanying pro forma statements of operations for the respective periods.

The estimated purchase price reflected in the accompanying pro forma financial statements was determined as follows (in 000’s):
 

Base purchase price as per the merger agreement   $549,700 
Plus estimated termination and relocation costs    4,000 
Plus Titan current assets as of March 31, 2006    102,875 
Less non debt facility current liabilities as of March 31, 2006    (49,631)

    
 

Estimated total purchase price   $606,944 
    

 

The estimated purchase price exceeds the net assets of Titan at March 31, 2006 by approximately $340.1 million. In the accompanying pro forma financial
statements, such excess was allocated as follows (in 000’s):
 

Property and equipment   $ 50,203
Intangible and other assets    38,240
Goodwill    251,609

    

Total   $340,052
    

Included in the results of operations of the Titan Predecessor Company for the period of July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004 is approximately $354.2
million of income related to the cancellation of debt through the bankruptcy process, net of $20.9 million of reorganization expenses and $10.8 million of fresh
start expenses. This income is not excluded from the pro forma income for the year ended August 31, 2005 as it does not result directly from the Titan acquisition.
However, this income is non-recurring in nature and we do not expect to realize similar income in the future.
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of May 31, 2006
(in thousands)

 

   

Historical
Energy Transfer

Partners L.P.
as of

May 31, 2006   

Historical
Titan Energy
Partners, L.P.

as of
March 31, 2006  

Pro Forma
Adjustments

(Note 2)     Pro forma
ASSETS         

CURRENT ASSETS:         
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 26,645  $ 40,719  $ 560,225  (a)  $ 30,674

       (602,944) (b)  
       6,029  (g)  

Marketable securities    4,510   —     —      4,510
Accounts receivable, net    494,459   35,261   —      529,720
Accounts receivable from related parties    2,361   —     —      2,361
Inventories    456,518   12,669   —      469,187
Price risk management assets    72,201   —     —      72,201
Prepaid expenses and other assets    141,265   14,226   —      155,491

            
 

    

Total current assets    1,197,959   102,875   (36,690)   1,264,144

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net    2,903,835   173,328   50,203  (b)   3,127,366
LONG-TERM PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ASSETS    5,143   —     —      5,143
INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES    36,985   —     —      36,985
GOODWILL    325,414   3,838   251,609  (b)   580,861
INTANGIBLES AND OTHER ASSETS, net    122,164   36,482   37,240  (b)   198,886

       2,000  (a)  
       1,000  (b)  
            

 
    

Total assets   $ 4,591,500  $ 316,523  $ 305,362   $5,213,385
            

 

    

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL         

CURRENT LIABILITIES:         
Working capital facility   $ —    $ —    $ —     $ —  
Accounts payable    513,206   21,924   —      535,130
Accounts payable to related parties    5   —     —      5
Customer deposits    13,374   —     —      13,374
Price risk management liabilities    33,388   —     —      33,388
Accrued and other current liabilities    209,189   27,707   4,000  (b)   240,896
Accrued distributions payable    100,678   —     —      100,678
Income taxes payable    1,221   —     —      1,221
Deferred income taxes    4,061   —     —      4,061
Current maturities of long-term debt    39,710   2,424   (2,424) (b)   39,710

            
 

    

Total current liabilities    914,832   52,055   1,576    968,463

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities    1,793,256   122,935   260,753  (a)   2,054,009
       (122,935) (b)  

LONG-TERM PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT LIABILITIES    363   —     —      363
NONCURRENT DEFERRED INCOME TAXES    108,741   —     —      108,741
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES    9,740   —     —      9,740
MINORITY INTERESTS    2,051   —     —      2,051

            
 

    

   2,828,983   174,990   139,394    3,143,367
            

 
    

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES         

PARTNERS’ CAPITAL:         
General Partner    41,752   5,245   (5,245) (b)   47,781

       6,029  (g)   —  
Common Unitholders    1,563,281   —     301,472  (a)   1,864,753
Class C Unitholders    3,599   —     —      3,599
Class F Unitholders    93,352   —     —      93,352
Limited Partners of Titan    —     136,288   (136,288) (b)   —  
Accumulated other comprehensive income    60,533   —     —      60,533

            
 

    

Total partners’ capital    1,762,517   141,533   165,968    2,070,018
            

 
    

Total liabilities and partners’ capital   $ 4,591,500  $ 316,523  $ 305,362   $5,213,385
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except unit and per unit data)
 

   

Nine Months
Ended

May 31,
2006   

Nine Months
Ended

March 31,
2006            

   

Historical
Energy

Transfer
Partners, L.P.   

Historical
Titan Energy
Partners, L.P.  

Pro Forma
Adjustments

(Note 2)     Pro Forma    
REVENUES:        

Midstream, transportation and storage   $ 5,503,385  $ —    $ —     $ 5,503,385  
Propane and other    783,386   334,957   —      1,118,343  

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

 

Total revenues    6,286,771   334,957   —      6,621,728  
    

 
   

 
   

 
    

 
 

COSTS AND EXPENSES:        
Cost of products sold, midstream and transportation and storage    4,765,113   —     —      4,765,113  
Cost of products sold, propane and other    481,712   197,203   —      678,915  
Operating, selling, general and administrative    385,322   89,385   —      474,707  
Depreciation and amortization    84,076   17,637   (61) (i)   101,652  
Restructuring charges    —     2,201   —      2,201  

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

 

Total costs and expenses    5,716,223   306,426   (61)   6,022,588  
    

 
   

 
   

 
    

 
 

OPERATING INCOME    570,548   28,531   61    599,140  

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):        
Interest expense    (70,609)  (8,778)  (12,360) (d)   (83,119) 

     8,778  (h)   
     (150) (f)   

Reorganization expenses    —     (1,817)  —      (1,817) 
Equity in losses of affiliates    (318)  —     —      (318) 
Gain on disposal of assets    556   (2)  —      554  
Interest income and other, net    12,933   829   —      13,762  

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND MINORITY INTEREST    513,110   18,763   (3,671)   528,202  
Income tax expense    (28,406)  —     (238) (c)   (28,644) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

 

INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS    484,704   18,763   (3,909)   499,558  
Minority interests    (2,199)  —     —      (2,199) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

 

NET INCOME   $ 482,505  $ 18,763  $ (3,909)  $ 497,359  
     

 

   

 

   

GENERAL PARTNER’S INTEREST IN NET INCOME    78,287   $ 4,763  (e)   83,050  
    

 

    

 

    

 

 

LIMITED PARTNERS’ INTEREST IN NET INCOME   $ 404,218     $ 414,309  
    

 

      

 

 

BASIC NET INCOME PER LIMITED PARTNER UNIT   $ 2.79     $ 2.74  
    

 

      

 

 

BASIC AVERAGE NUMBER OF LIMITED PARTNER UNITS OUTSTANDING    108,466,616    7,170,235  (a)   115,636,851  
    

 

    

 

    

 

 

DILUTED NET INCOME PER LIMITED PARTNER UNIT   $ 2.78     $ 2.73  
    

 

      

 

 

DILUTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF LIMITED PARTNER UNITS
OUTSTANDING    108,718,490    7,170,235  (a)   115,888,725  
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except unit and per unit data)
 

   

For the Year
Ended

August 31,
2005   

For the
period

December 20,
2004 through
June 30, 2005  

For the
period

July 1, 2004
through

December 19,
2004          

   

Historical
Energy

Transfer
Partners, L.P.   

Historical
Successor

Titan
Entity   

Historical
Predecessor

Titan
Entity   

Pro forma
Adjustments

(Note 2)     Pro forma  
REVENUES:        

Midstream, transportation and storage   $ 5,383,625  $ —    $ —    $ —     $ 5,383,625 
Propane and other    785,173   222,207   151,674   —      1,159,054 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total revenues    6,168,798   222,207   151,674   —      6,542,679 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

COSTS AND EXPENSES:        
Cost of products sold - midstream and transportation and storage    4,911,366   —     —     —      4,911,366 
Cost of products sold - propane and other    470,149   126,179   88,660   —      684,988 
Operating, selling, general and administrative    382,289   62,489   52,819   —      497,597 
Depreciation and amortization    92,943   12,833   9,675   927  (i)   116,378 
Restructuring charges    —     753   —     —      753 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

Total costs and expenses    5,856,747   202,254   151,154   927    6,211,082 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

OPERATING INCOME    312,051   19,953   520   (927)   331,597 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):        
Interest expense    (93,017)  (5,424)  (169)  (16,480) (d)   (109,697)

      (200) (f)  
      5,593  (h)  

Loss on extinguishment of debt    (9,550)  —     —     —      (9,550)
Equity in losses of affiliates    (376)  —     —     —      (376)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets    (330)  45   8   —      (277)
Reorganization expenses    —     (3,959)  (20,898)  —      (24,857)
Gain on cancellation of debt    —     —     385,951   —      385,951 
Fresh start expenses    —     —     (10,835)  —      (10,835)
Interest income and other    631   1,440   (360)  —      1,711 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAX
EXPENSE AND MINORITY INTERESTS    209,409   12,055   354,217   (12,014)   563,667 

Income tax expense    (7,295)  —     (8)  (7,612) (c)   (14,915)
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS    202,114   12,055   354,209   (19,626)   548,752 

Minority interests    (731)  —     —     —      (731)
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
    

 

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS   $ 201,383  $ 12,055  $ 354,209  $ (19,626)  $ 548,021 
     

 

   

 

   

 

  

GENERAL PARTNER’S INTEREST IN INCOME FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS    26,195    $ 9,762  (e)   35,957 

    

 

     

 

    

 

LIMITED PARTNERS’ INTEREST IN INCOME FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS   $ 175,188      $ 512,064 

    

 

       

 

BASIC INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER LIMITED
PARTNER UNIT   $ 1.79      $ 3.78 

    

 

       

 

BASIC AVERAGE NUMBER OF LIMITED PARTNER UNITS
OUTSTANDING    97,646,351     7,170,235  (a)   104,816,586 

    

 

     

 

    

 

DILUTED INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER
LIMITED PARTNER UNIT   $ 1.79      $ 3.77 

    

 

       

 

DILUTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF LIMITED PARTNER UNITS
OUTSTANDING    97,900,277     7,170,235  (a)   105,070,512 
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ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation and Other Transactions

On April 19, 2006, ETP signed a definitive agreement with Titan Energy Partners, L.P. under which ETP acquired on June 1, 2006, all of the propane
operations of Titan Energy Partners, L.P. and Titan Energy GP, LLC for approximately $550 million plus working capital adjustments (a total of approximately
$562.2 million based on working capital as of March 31, 2006, net of cash acquired of $40.7 million). ETP financed the acquisition initially with advances under
its revolving credit facility. ETP intends to repay the advances as soon as practicable with proceeds expected to be received through a combination of the sale of a
new public debt offering (expected proceeds of approximately $260.7 million) and a private placement, public offering or a combination thereof of its common
units (expected net proceeds of approximately $301.5 million).

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements do not give any effect to any restructuring cost, potential cost savings, or other
operating efficiencies that are expected to result from the Titan acquisition. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are based on certain
assumptions and do not purport to be indicative of the results which actually would have been achieved if the Titan acquisition, the $260.7 million debt issuance,
and the $301.5 million common unit offering had been consummated on the dates indicated or which may be achieved in the future. Moreover, it does not project
ETP’s financial position or results of operations for any future date or period. The purchase accounting adjustments made in connection with the development of
the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements with respect to the Titan acquisition are preliminary and have been made solely for purposes of
presenting such pro forma financial information. The allocation of the purchase price has not been finalized, as discussed above.

The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial statements present (i) the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of May 31, 2006,
giving effect to the Titan acquisition and the expected proceeds of debt and issuance of common units used to finance the Titan acquisition as if these transactions
occurred on May 31, 2006; and (ii) unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of operations for the nine months ended May 31, 2006 and the year
ended August 31, 2005, giving effect to the transactions described above as if they occurred on September 1, 2004. The unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended August 31, 2005 consolidates the historical results of operations for ETP for the year ended August 31,
2005 and of Predecessor Titan for the period from July 1, 2004 through December 19, 2004, and Successor Titan for the period December 20, 2004 through
June 30, 2005, after giving effect to pro forma adjustments, as discussed below. There is no pro forma adjustment to eliminate the $354.2 million of debt
cancellation income, net of reorganization and fresh start expenses related to the bankruptcy and fresh start process of Predecessor Titan, which income is non-
recurring and not expected in the future because the SEC rules related to pro forma presentations permit only those adjustments directly related to the transaction.

The Titan acquisition is accounted for as a business combination using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141. For the purposes of these pro forma financial statements, the estimated purchase price was determined as follows (in
thousands):
 

Base purchase price as per the merger agreement   $549,700 
Plus estimated termination and relocation costs    4,000 
Plus Titan current assets as of March 31, 2006    102,875 
Less non debt facility current liabilities as of March 31, 2006    (49,631)

    
 

Estimated purchase price   $606,944 
    

 

For purposes of this pro forma analysis, the purchase price of the Titan transaction has been allocated using the acquisition methodology used by ETP when
evaluating potential acquisitions. The purchase price has been assigned primarily to depreciable fixed assets, amortizable and non-amortizable intangible assets,
and non-amortizable goodwill. Management of ETP has engaged an appraisal firm to perform the asset appraisal in order to develop a definitive allocation of the
purchase price. As a result, the final purchase price allocation may differ from the preliminary allocation, and the changes from the estimates made herein may be
material. To the extent the final allocation results in an additional allocation to goodwill in excess of the amount estimated in the pro forma financial statements,
this amount would not be subject to amortization, but would be subject to an annual impairment test and, if necessary, a write-down to a lower fair value should
circumstances warrant. To the extent the final allocation results in a decrease to the preliminary allocation to goodwill done for the purpose of preparing these pro
forma financial statements, the amount would be subject to depreciation or amortization which would result in a decrease to the estimated pro forma income
reflected in the accompanying pro forma statements of operations for the respective periods.
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The preliminary allocation to assets acquired and liabilities assumed for the accompanying pro forma financial statements is as follows (in thousands):
 

Current assets   $102,875 
Non-debt facility current liabilities    (49,631)
Property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress    223,531 
Intangible assets    73,722 
Goodwill    255,447 
Other assets    1,000 

    
 

Total   $606,944 
    

 

2. Pro Forma Adjustments

(a) Reflects the estimated proceeds from issuance of ETP debt and common units to fund the acquisition of Titan, net of cash acquired in the acquisition
($40.7 million) and estimated debt issuance costs ($2.0 million) and reflects the estimated issuance of ETP common units used to fund the Titan acquisition.
Based on the purchase price using the balance sheet of Titan as of March 31, 2006, ETP expects a total of $301.5 million of the purchase price to be paid with net
proceeds from a sale of its common units. For the purpose of these pro forma financial statements, the per unit price ($44.61) was determined as the average
closing price of the ETP common units during the 5-day period ended July 14, 2006. The actual number of units to be sold may vary from the number of shares
estimated in the pro forma financial statements, which may result in a change in the computation of basic and diluted pro forma earnings per unit.

(b) Reflects the acquisition of Titan and the allocation of the excess purchase price over Titan’s historical net assets (a total of $340.1 million) to property,
plant and equipment of $50.2 million, goodwill of $251.6 million, intangible assets of $37.2 million, and other assets of $1.0 million. The allocation includes an
accrual of $4.0 million for the estimated costs to be incurred for the termination and relocation of Titan employees. This allocation is preliminary. The final
allocation will be made using the appraisal of the tangible and intangible assets of Titan and the final adjusted purchase price based on the final Titan balance
sheet as of the closing date, June 1, 2006.

(c) Reflects the adjustment for the additional income tax expense of Heritage Holdings, Inc. that would have been incurred had the additional Titan income
been earned by ETP.

(d) Reflects the interest expense that would have been incurred related to borrowings of $261 million to fund the Titan acquisition at an assumed interest
rate of 6.32%. This relates to the ETP public debt expected to be issued as soon as practicable to repay the advances under ETP’s revolving credit facility and
assumes that this public debt had been outstanding for the entire period indicated. The actual interest rate to be incurred depends on the terms of the debt offering
and the interest rates at the time the debt is issued. A decrease or increase of the interest rate of one-eighth of 1% (0.125%) over the assumed rate of 6.32% would
result in an increase or decrease of pro forma income for the year ended August 31, 2005 and the nine months ended May 31, 2006 of approximately $0.3 million
and $0.2 million, respectively.

(e) Reflects the additional income allocated to ETP’s general partner related to the increase in incentive distribution rights due to the issuance of additional
common units used to fund the Titan acquisition and the general partners’ 2% interest in the pro forma net income.

(f) Reflects additional amortization expense related to the estimated financing costs of the debt used to fund the Titan acquisition. The estimated financing
costs are amortized over a 10 year period, the expected maturity period of the public debt expected to be issued as soon as practicable.

(g) Reflects the contribution by ETP’s general partner, ETP GP, L.P., required in order to maintain its 2% general partner interest in ETP. The final amount
of such contribution depends on the level of equity sold in order to finance the Titan acquisition.

(h) Reflects the elimination of Titan’s historical interest expense in order to reflect only the incremental interest expense related to the debt to be issued to
finance the Titan acquisition.

(i) Reflects the estimated net adjustment to depreciation and amortization expense resulting from the step-up of the net book value of property, plant and
equipment and identifiable intangible assets. The allocation to property and equipment in excess of Titan’s historical net book value at March 31, 2006 relates
primarily to company-owned storage tanks, vehicles
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and vehicle cargo tanks, which are depreciated over their expected remaining useful lives (estimated as 19 years for storage tanks, 4 years for vehicles and 25
years for vehicle cargo tanks) for the purpose of the accompanying pro forma financial statements. The allocation to intangible assets in excess of Titan’s
historical cost relates primarily to customer lists and trademarks. The allocation to customer lists is amortized over the expected remaining useful life
(approximately 13 years) for the purpose of the pro forma financial statements. Trademarks and goodwill are indefinite-lived assets subject to annual tests for
impairment, thus no amortization has been reflected in the accompanying pro forma financial statements for the amounts allocated to those intangible assets. The
final purchase price allocation may result in a modification of the allocation reflected in the accompanying pro forma financial statements, which may be material
and which would result in a change in the estimated additional depreciation and amortization.

3. Earnings per Unit Computation

Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit for the historical and pro forma statements of operations have been presented to reflect the application
of EITF 03-6. The Partnership’s net income for partners’ capital purposes is allocated to the General Partner and Limited Partners in accordance with their
respective partnership percentages, after giving effect to any priority income allocations for incentive distributions, if any, to the Partnership’s General Partner, the
holders of the incentive distribution rights pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, which are declared and paid following the close of each quarter. For purposes
of computing basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit, in periods, on a year to date basis, when the Partnership’s aggregate net income exceeds the
aggregate distributions for such year to date periods, an increased amount of net income is allocated to the General Partner for the additional pro forma priority
income attributable to the application of EITF 03-6. The General Partner is entitled to receive incentive distributions if the amount the Partnership distributes with
respect to any quarter exceeds levels specified in the Partnership Agreement.
 
   ETP Historical   Pro forma  

 

  Year Ended
August 31,

2005  

 Nine Months
Ended May 31,

2006  

 Year Ended
August 31,

2005  

 Nine Months
Ended May 31,

2006       
Income from continuing operations   $ 201,383  $ 482,505  $ 548,021  $ 497,359 
Adjustments:      

General Partner’s incentive distributions    (22,167)  (68,781)  (24,997)  (73,247)
General Partner’s equity ownership    (4,028)  (9,506)  (10,960)  (9,803)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Limited Partners’ interest in income from continuing operations   $ 175,188  $ 404,218  $ 512,064  $ 414,309 
Income allocable to class C units    —     (3,599)  —     (3,599)
Additional earnings allocation to General Partner    —     (98,100)  (115,644)  (93,988)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net income available to limited partners   $ 175,188  $ 302,519  $ 396,420  $ 316,722 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted average limited partner units – basic    97,646,351   108,466,616   104,816,586   115,636,851 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Limited Partners’ basic income per unit from continuing operations   $ 1.79  $ 2.79  $ 3.78  $ 2.74 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted average limited partner units    97,646,351   108,466,616   104,816,586   115,636,851 
Dilutive effect of Unit grants    253,926   251,874   253,926   251,874 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Weighted average limited partner units, assuming dilutive effect of Unit
grants    97,900,277   108,718,490   105,070,512   115,888,725 

    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Limited Partners’ diluted income per unit from continuing operations   $ 1.79  $ 2.78  $ 3.77  $ 2.73 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

4. Other Income

Included in “Interest income and other” for ETP for the nine months ended May 31, 2006 is approximately $7.2 million of income from the settlement of
litigation. The non-recurring income is not excluded from the pro forma income as it does not result directly from the Titan acquisition. However, we do not
expect to realize similar income in the future.
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